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Honorable Mayor Joe Gibbons
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Citizens of the City of Lenoir
Lenoir, North Carolina

North Carolina State law requires that all general-purpose local governments publish
within six months of the close of each fiscal year a complete set of financial statements
presented in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) and
audited in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards by a firm of licensed
certified public accountants, Pursuant to those requirements, we are pleased to present
the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) of the City of Lenoir for the fiscal
year ended June 30, 2013,

The financial statements and supplemental schedules contained herein have been audited
by Eric Bowman, a licensed certified public accountant, and his unqualified opinion is
included in the Financial Section of this report. The report itself, however, is presented
by the City, which is responsible for both the accuracy of the data and the completeness
and fairness of the presentation including all disclosures, To the best of our knowledge
and belief, the enclosed data is accurate in all material respects and is reported in a
manner designed to present fairly the financial position and results of operations of the
various funds of the City. All disclosures necessary to enable the reader to gain an
understanding of the City’s financial activity have been included.

The report is presented in four sections: Infroductory, Financial, Statistical, and
Compliance. The Introductory Section, which is unaudited, includes this transmittal
lettet, list of principal officials, the City’s organizational chart, and the Government
Finance Officers Association Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial
Reporting. The Financial Section includes the independent auditor’s report,
management’s discussion and analysis, the basic financial statements, notes to the
financial statements, other supplementary information, and various fund schedules. The
Statistical Section, which is unaudited, contains selected fiscal, economic, and
demographic data designed to provide a more complete understanding of the City.
Several tables in this section present data for the past ten years. Finally, the Compliance
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Section presents reports and schedules requirgd by the federal and state Single Audit
Acts, which are discussed in a later paragraph.

The independent audit of the financial statements of the City of Lenoir was part of a
broader, federally mandated “Single Audit” designed to meet the special needs of federal
grantor agencies. The standards governing single audit engagements require the
independent auditor to report not only on the fair presentation of the financial statements,
but also on the audited government’s internal controls and compliance with legal
requirements, with special emphasis on internal controls and legal requirements involving
the administration of federal awards. These reports are available in the Compliance
section of this report.

Generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) require that management provide a
narrative introduction, overview, and analysis to accompany the basic financial
statements in the form of Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A). This letter
of transmittal is designed to complement the MD&A and should be read in conjunction
with it, The City of Lenoit’s MD&A can be found immediately following the report of
the independent auditor in the Financial Section of this report.

The financial reporting entity includes all the funds of the primary government (City of
Lenoir), as well as its component unit. Component units are legally scparate entities for
which the primary government is financially accountable. Discretely presented
component units are reported in a separate column in the basic financial statements to
emphasize that they are legally separate from the primary government and to distinguish
their financial positions and results of operations from those of the primary government,
The City of Lenoir ABC Board and Lenoir Tourisin Development Authority are reported
as a discretely presented component unit.

City of Lenoir Profile

Located in the foothills of the Blue Ridge Mountains, the City of Lenoir is the county
seat of Caldwell County. Incorporated in 1851 and named in honor of Revolutionary
War hero, General William Lenoit, the City has become an industrial center of
northwestern North Carolina, as well as being the hub of commercial and government
activity in the county. Lenoir is the largest incorporated area in the County and serves a
population of 18,123. All the major cultural, medical, governmental and financial
activities of the County are located in the City. Lenoir enjoys a temperate climate with a
mild four-season year. We are located within an hour’s drive to the northwest to enjoy
ski slopes and the Blue Ridge Parkway, and a five-hour drive to the southeast to enjoy the
white beach sands of the Atlantic Ocean.

The City is empowered by State statute to extend its corporate limits by annexation. It
engages in continual review of areas of potential future annexation by petition and
statute. The last major annexation of the City was in 2001 when it annexed
approximately 850 parcels of land into its corporate limits.




The City has a council/manager form of government. The maayor is elected to a four-year
term and the seven members of the council are elected to staggered four-year terms.
Council members hold policy-making and legislative authority. They are also
responsible for adopting the budget and appointing the City Manager. The manager is
responsible for implementing policies, managing daily operations, and appointing
department heads.

The City provides a full range of services. These services include police and fire
protection, solid waste collection, street maintenance, public improvements, planning and
zoning, community and economic development, recreational activities, cemeteries and
grounds-keeping, water treatment and distribution, and wastewater collection and
ireatment. In addition to general governmental activities, the City has a Municipal
Service Taxing District in the downtown area. The District is operated and devoted to
development within the taxing district. As the City of Lenoir governing body exercises
oversight of the District, this activity is included in the reporting entity. The report
includes all the City’s activities in maintaining these services.

The City also extends financial support fo certain agencies and authorities to assist their
efforts in serving citizens, Among these are the Western Piedmont Council of
Governments and the Foothills Regional Airport Authority.

The annual budget serves as the foundation for the City of Lenoir’s financial planning
and control. The City’s budget is adopted by ordinance in accordance with the General
Statutes of North Carolina, which requires estimated revenues and expenditures to be
balanced. The budget includes only expenditures expected during the fiscal year. The
budget is adopted on a modified accrual basis. All expected operating funds are included
in the Budget Ordinance and are expended in accordance with the adopted ordinance.
The fiscal year budget, by State Statute, begins July 1 and ends June 30.

North Carolina General Statutes also provide for capital projects and special revenue
grants to be adopted for the life of the project and/or grant. The City of Lenoir has
several such projects includes in this report. These include the Fairview Street bridge,
downtown streetscape, the greenway, the Fit Comnuunity project, HOME and CDBG
projects, and several public safety grants. ‘

The appropriated budget is prepared by fund (e.g. general), function (e.g. public safety),
and department (e.g. finance). Deparfment heads may request the City Manager, acting
as Budget Officer, make transfers of appropriations within a department, Transfers of
appropriations between departments can be approved by the City Manager. Actual-to-
budget comparisons are provided in this report for each individual governmental fund for
which an appropriated annual budget has been adopted. For the general fund, this
comparison is presented as part of the basic financial statements for the governmental
funds. For other activities with appropriated annual budgets, this comparison is presented
in the Combining and Individual Fund Financial Statement section of this report. Also
included in this section are project-length actual-to-budget comparisons for which a
project-length budget has been adopted.
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Feonomie ¢condition and outlook -

Small business growth in Lenoir has been impacted by national economic trends as
evidenced by fewer business start-ups during fiscal year 2012-2013. The number of new
jobs in the downtown area showed a slight decrease due to the loss of several jobs
resulting from the closure of various retail stores. Private investment in building
renovations continued but at a lower rate than in previous yeats.

Major initiatives

Unemployment in the region and the turmoil in the national economy contributed to an
increase in vacant retail space in Lenoir during fiscal year 2012-2013. The 308,141
square feet of vacant retail space includes the relocation and consolidation of two
furniture and home furnishing businesses which are typically among the hardest hit
during a recession, . Private investment in the downtown revitalization area was less than
the previous year, Vacant and underutilized industrial and manufacturing space continues
to be a challenge for Lenoir,

To continue the city’s on-going efforts in the revitalization of downtown, the streetscape
project continued during this fiscal year. The re-working of overhead utilities to

undesground, plantings, new sculpture, the updating of the Harper Avenue sidewalks and
new uptown activities have created a more pleasant environment for downtown business.

The City continues to construct additional segments to our greenway. We now have
approximately 10.0 miles of paved greenway within the corporate limits. The projectisa
parlnership involving the N.C. Department of Transportation, the City of Lenoir, and
Caldwell County Pathways Committee,

Financial information

Management of the City is responsible for establishing and maintaining an internal
control structure designed fo protect the assets of the City from loss, theft or misuse, and
to ensure that adequate accounting data are compiled to allow for the preparation of
financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles. The
internal control structure is designed to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance
that these objectives are met. The concept of reasonable assurance recognizes that: (1)
the cost of a control should not exceed the benefits likely to be received and (2) the
evaluation of costs and benefits requires estimates and judgments by management.

Single audit — As a recipient of Federal and State financial assistance, the City also is
responsible for maintaining an adequate internal control structure to ensure compliance
with applicable laws and regulations related to those programs. The results of the City’s
single audit for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2013, provided no instances of material
weaknesses in the internal control structure or significant violations of applicable laws
and regulations relative to grant administration,
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Other information

Independent audit — N. C. General Statutes require an annual independent financial
audit of all local government units in the State. Fric Bowman, CPA, has audited the
financial records of the City and his opinion has been included in this report. His audit
was made in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and, accordingly,
included such tests of the accounting records and such other auditing procedures as he
considered necessaty in the circumstances. His unqualified opinion indicates that the
accompanying basic financial statements for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2013 have
been prepared in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles. In addition
to meeting the requirements set forth in State statutes, the audit also was designed to meet
the requirements of the federal Single andit Act of 1984 and related OMB Civeular A-
133,

The auditor’s reports related specifically to the single audit are included in the
Compliance Section.

Awards — The Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and
Canada (GFOA) awarded a Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial
Reporting to the City of Lenoir for its comprehensive annual financial report for the year
ended June 30, 2012. This was the fifteenth consecutive year that the City of Lenoir has
achieved this prestigious award. In order to be awarded a Certificate of Achievement, a

- povernment unit must publish an easily readable and efficiently organized comprehensive
annual financial report. This report must satisfy both generally accepted accounting -
principles and applicable legal requirements. A Certificate of Achievement is valid fora
period of one year only. We believe our current comprehensive annual financial report
continues to meet the Certificate of Achievement Program’s requirements and we are
submitting it to the GFOA to determine its eligibility for another certificate.

Acknowledgements — We recognize that responsibility for the contents of this report is
the City’s but it would be inappropriate not to mention the invaluable assistance of the
staff in the Morganton, North Carolina, office of our independent auditor, Etic Bowman.,
Assistance and cooperation was also provided by the City’s various departments and is
appreciated by the City Manager and Finance Director. “Thank you” is extended to you,
the Mayor and Lenoir City Council, for your continued support.

As required by N. C. General Statute 159.34, a copy of this report will be filed with the

Secretary of the North Carolina Local Government Commission. In addition, a copy will
be sent to the City Clerk to be available for public inspection.

Sincerely,

CITY OF LENOIR
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S. Eric Bowman, P.A.

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANT

403 South Green Street
F.O. Box 1476

Morganton, NG 28680-1476
Telephone (828) 438-1065
Fax (828} 438-9117

Indepepdent‘Auditor’s Report

To the iHonorable Mayor
and Members of the City Council
City of Lenoir, North Carclina

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental
activities, the business-type activities, the aggregate discretely presented
cormwonent units, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund
information of the City of Lenoir, North Carolina, as of and for the year
ended June 30, 2013, and the related notes to the financial statements, which
collactively comprise the City of Lenoir’s basic financial statements as
listed in the table of contents.

Management’s Respongibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these
financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design,
implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the
preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

OQur responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based
on our audit. We did not audit the financial statements of the City of
Lenolr ABC Board which represents 1 percent, 1 percent and 10 percent,
respectively, of the assets, net position and revenues of the component unit.
Those statements were audited by other auditors whose reports thereon has
bean furnished to us, and our opinion, insofar as it relates to the amounts
included for the City of Lenoir ABC Board, is based solely on the report ol
the other auditors. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Govermmental Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller of the United States. Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement,

The financial statements of City of Lenoir ABC Board were not audited in
‘accordance with Governmental Auditing Standards.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to Iraud or




To the Honorable Mayor
and Mempbers of the City Council
City of Lenoir

error. In making those risk assesswments, the auditor considers internal
control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the
financial statements in crder to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no
such opinion. An audit alsc includes evaluating the appropriatensess of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation
of the financial statements,

We believe that our audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
‘appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinions.

COpinions

In our opinion, based upon our audit and the report of the other auditors,
the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the respective financial position of the governmental activities,
the business-type activities, the aggregate discretely presented component
units, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the
City of Lenoir, North Carolina as of June 30, 2013, and the respsctive
changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof and
the respective budgetary comparison for the General Fund for the ysar then
ended in accordance with accounting prineiples generally acceptad in the
United States of America.

Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted im the United States of Bmerica
regquire that Management’s Discussion and Analysis and the other Post
Employment Benefit and the Law Enforcement Officer’s Special Separation
Allowance Schedules of Funding Process Employer Contributions on page 4
through 16 and 60 through 61, respectively, be presented to supplement the
basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the
basic financlal statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting
Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of financial
reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate
operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied cextain
limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance
with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of Bmerica,
which consist of inqguiries of management about the methods of preparing the
information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s
responses to our inguiries, the basic financial statements, and other
knowledge we obtained during cur audit of the basic financial statements. We
de not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because
the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express
an opinion or provide any assurance.




To the Heonorable Mayor
and Members of tha Clty Council
City of Lenoir

Supplsmnentary and Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the finanoial
statements that collectively comprise the City of Lenolr’s hasic financlal
statements. The introductory information, combining and individusl fund
financial statemenks, bundgetary schedules, other schedules, and statilstical
section as well as the accompanying schedule of expenditures of fedexal and
state awards as raquired by U.S. Office and Management and Budget Circular A-
133, Audits of State and local Governments, and Non-Profift Organizations and
the State Single Audit Implementation Act axe presented for purposes of
additional analysis and are not a required pari of the financlal statements,

The combinlng and individval fund finahcial statements, budgetary schedules,
othex schedules and the schedule of expenditures of federal and state awards
are the regponsibility of management: and werxe derived from and relates
dizectly to the underlying mccounting and other records usad to prepare the
basic Iinancial statements, BSuch information has been subjected to the
auditing procedures applied In the audit of the basic financial statements
and cartain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such
information direotly to the underlying accounting and other records usad to
prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic finaneial statements
themselves, and other additional provedures in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of Awperiea by us ang other
aunditors. In our opinion, based on our audit, the procedures performed as
dascribed ahove, and the report of other auditors the combinlng and
individual fund financial statements, budgetary sechedules, other schedules
and the schedule of expenditures of federal and state awards are fairly
stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basle financial

statements as a whols.

The Introductory information and the statistical sections have nof: besn
subjected to the auditing procedwres applied in the audit of basic financial
statements, and accoxdingly, we do not express an opinlon or provids
assurance on them,

Other Reporting Required by Gevernnent Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auwditing Standards, we have also issued our
reporlt dated Septewmber 30, 2013 on our ceonsideration of the Cilty of Lanoir’s
internal contrel over financial reporting and on our tests of its cowpliancs
with cexrtain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agrecuents
and othexr matters, ‘'The purpuse of Lhat repoxrt is to describe Lthe scope of
our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and
the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal
coantrol over finanoial reporting or on compliance. That repoxt is an
integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing
Standards in considering City of Yenolr’s internal control over financial

repoxting and cowpliance, )

5. Eric Bowman, P.A.
Certified Public Accountant

Horganton, Worth Carolina
Septembexr 30, 2013




City of Lenoir, North Carolina

Management’s Discussion and Analysis
For the Year ended June 30, 2013

As management of the City of Lenoir, we offer readers of the City of Lenoir’s financial
statements this narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of the City of
Lenoir for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2013. We encourage readers to read the
information presented here in conjunction with additional information that we have
furnished in the City’s financial statements, which follow this narrative.

Financial Highlights

e The assets of the City of Lenoir exceeded its liabilities and deferred inflows of
resources at the close of the fiscal year by $64,319,791 (net position).

« The government’s total net position increased by $364,619 with a $531,788
decrease in governmental activities and an $896,407 increase in business-type
activities. -

o As of the close of the current fiscal year, the City of Lenoir’s governmental funds
reported combined ending fund balances of $5,542,112 an increase of $221,508 in
comparison with the prior year. Approximately 62.28 percent of this total amount
or $3,451,379 is available for spending at the government’s discretion.

» At the end of the current fiscal year, unassigned fund balance for the General
Fund was $3,211,745 or 19.80 percent of total general fund expenditures for the
fiscal year. '

e The City of Lenoir’s total debt decreased by $2,682,244 or 16.25 percent during
the current fiscal year.

Overview of the Financial Statements

This discussion and analysis are intended to serve as an introduction to City of Lenoit’s
basic financial statements. The City’s basic financial statements consist of three
components: 1) government-wide financial statements, 2) fund financial statements, and
3) notes to the financial statements (sce Figure 1), The basic financial statements present
two different views of the City through the use of government-wide statements and fund
financial statements. In addition to the basic financial statements, this report contains
other supplemental information that will enhance the reader’s understanding of the
financial condition of the City of Lenoir,




City of Lenoir, North Carolina

Management’s Discussion and Analysis
For the Year ended June 30, 2013

Required Components of Annual Financial Repoxt

Figure 1
Management's Basic
Discussion and Financial
Analysis Statements
Government-wide Fund Notes to the
Financial Financial Financial
Statements Statements ; Statements
Summary » Detail

Basic Financial Statementis

The first two statements (Exhibits A and B) in the basic financial statements are the
Government-wide Financial Statements.

information about the City’s financial status.

The next statements (Exhibits C through 1) are Fund Financial Statements. These
statements focus on the activities of the individual parts of the City’s government. These
statements provide more detail than the government-wide statements. There are four
patts to the Fund Financial Statements: 1) the governmental funds statements; 2) the
budgetary comparison statement; 3) the proprictary fund statements; and 4) the fiduciary

fund statements.

They provide both short and long-term




City of Lenoir, North Carolina

Management’s Discussion and Analysis
For the Year ended June 30, 2013

The next section of the basic financial statements is the notes. The notes to the financial
statements explain in detail some of the data contained in those statements. After the
notes, supplemental information is provided to show details about the City’s individual
funds. Budgetary information required by the General Statutes also can be found in this
part of the statements.

Governmeni-wide Finaneial Statenients

The government-wide financial statements ave designed to provide the reader with a
broad overview of the City’s finances, similar in format to a financial statement of a
private-sector business. The government-wide statements provide short and long-term
information about the City’s financial status as a whole.

‘The two government-wide statements report the City’s net position and how they have
changed. Net position is the difference between the City’s t_otal‘ assets and total liabilities
and deferred inflows of resources. Measuring net positior is one way to gauge the City’s

financial condition,

The government-wide statements are divided into three categories: 1) governmental
activities; 2) business-type activities and 3) component units. The governmental
activities include most of the City’s basic services such as public safety, transportation,
environmental protection, economic and physical development, cultural and recreational,
and gencral administration. Property taxes, state and federal grants, and state-shared
revenues finance most of these activities. The business-type activities are those that the
City charges customers t0 provide. These include the water and sewer services offered
by the City of Lenoir. The final category is the component units. Although Jegaily
separate from the City, the ABC Board and LTDA. Board are important to the City
because the City exercises control over the Boards by appointing its members. The ABC
Board is also required to distribute & portion of its profits to the City.

The government-wide financial statements are on Exhibits A and B of this report.
Fund Financial Statements

The fund financial statements provide a more detailed look at the City’s most significant
activities, A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over
resources that have been segregated for specific activities of objectives. The City of
Lenoir, like all other governmental entities in North Carolina, uses fund accounting to
ensure and reflect compliance (or non-compliance) with finance-related legal
requirements, such as {he General Statutes or the City’s budget ordinance. All of the
funds of City of Lenoir can be divided into two categories: governmental funds and
proprietaty funds.
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Governmental Funds — Governmental funds are used to account for those functions
reported as governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. Most of
the City’s basic services are accounted for in governmental fonds. These funds focus on
how assets can readily be converted into cash flow in and out, and what monies are left at
year-end that will be available for spending in the next year. Governmental funds are
reported using an accounting method called modified acerual accounting which provides
a short-term spending focus. As a result, the governmental fund financial statements give
the reader a detailed short-term view that helps him or het determine if there are more or
Jess financial resources available to finance the City’s programs. The relationship
between government activities (reported in the "Statement of Net Position and the
Statement of Activities) and governmental finds is described in a reconciliation that is a
part of the fund financial statements.

The City of Lenoir adopts an annual budget for ils General Fund, as required by the
General Statates. The budget is 2 legally adopted document that incorporates input from
the citizens of the Cily, the management of the City, and the decisions of the City Council
about which services to provide and how to pay for them. Tt also authorizes the City to
obtain funds from identified sources to finance these current period activities. The
budgetary statement provided for the General Fund demonstrates how well the City
complied with the budget ordinance and whether or not the City succeeded in providing
the services as planned when the budget was adopted. The budgetary compatison
statement uses the budgetary basis of accounting and is presented using the same format,
language, and classifications as the statement of revenues, expenditures and changes in
fund balance. The statement shows four columns: 1) the original budget as adopted by
the Council; 2) the final budget as amended by the Council; 3) the actual resources,
charges to approptiations, and ending balances in the General Fund; and 4) the difference
or variance between the final budget and the actual resources and charges.

Proprietary Funds — City of Lenoir has only one type of proprietary fund. Enterprise
Funds are used to report the same functions presented as business-type activities in the
government-wide financial statements. The City of Lenoir uses an enterprise fund to
account for its water and sewer activity. This fund is the same as those functions shown
in the business-type activities in the Statement of Net Position and the Statement of
Activities.

Notes fo the Financial Statements — The notes provide additional information that is
essential to a full understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund
financial statements. The notes to the financial statements begin on page 28 of this
report. ’

Ofther Information — In addition to the basic financial stalements and accompanying
notes, this report includes certain required supplementary information concerning the
City of Lenoit’s progress in funding its obligation to provide pension benefits to its
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employees. Required supplementary information can be found beginning on page 60 of

this report.
Government-Wide Financial Analysis

As noted earlier, net position may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government’s
financial position. In the case of the City of Lenoir, assets exceeded liabilities and
deferred inflows of resources by $64,319,791 as of June 30, 2013 (figure 2).

The City of Lenoir’s Net Position

Grenmutad Brnes{ype
Activitics Ativitics TotAd
08 12 08 2012 2013 02

CiaiCinass  § GRIGH § SIG26 § 0708 § 30008 § 1QUROD § GREM

Ciytel Assefs R3] IR ARG A8Bs NG  RTIG
Totd Asts $ 356100 § RIIG0ST $ RBEHAD $ AN $ HBA0 § L6140
Lo Tl ieilitics $ 27201 § M § DIBB $ 1450k $ 1501685 § 178B50
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TRestricted 2000733 28274 2060733 206254
Uhedricted 25800418 205505 322,193 33142 581,611 5697
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Figure 2

The largest portion of the City of Lenoir’s net position (87.6 percent) reflect its
juvestment in capital assets (e.g. land, buildings, machinery, equipment, etc.), less any
related outstanding debt used to acquire those assets. The City of Lenoir uses those
assets (o provide services to its citizens which make those assets not available for future
spending. Although the City of Lenoit’s investment in its capital assets is reported net of
related debt, it should be noted that the resources needed to repay this debt must be
provided from other sources, since the capital assets themselves cannot be used to
liquidate these Habilities. An additional portion of the City of Lenoir’s net position
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(3.25%) represents resources that are subject to external restrictions on how they may be
used or that are not spendable. The remaining balance of unrestricted net position
($5,861,611) may be used to meet the governinent’s ongoing obligations to citizens and
creditors. The increase in net position is due mainly to the reduction of debt paid during
the fiscal year. ‘

Several particular aspects of the City’s financial operations influenced the total
unassigned net assets:

« Continued diligence in the collection of property taxes by maintaining a tax
collection percentage of 95.44
e Adherence to the adopted budget

Governmental activities: Governmental activitics decreased the City’s net position by
$531,788, (Figure 3) Key clements of this decrease are as follows:

’ Depreciation of capital assets

City of Lenoir Changes in Net Position

Figure 3
Governmental Activities Business-type Activities Totals
2013 2012 2013 2042 2013 2012
Revenucs:

Programrevenues:
Charpes for services § L7325 0§ 21774 S 71598 8 7575832 3 9SH883 § 0 9693556
Operating grants and contributions 1,685,037 2,871,333 - - 1,685,037 2,871,333
Capital prants and contributlons 365,146 202,102 . 500,000 365,146 702,102

General revenues:
Property taxes 7,514,078 6,824,494 - - 7,514,008 6,824,494
Crher taxes 3,902,194 3,840,310 - - 3,502,194 3,840,310
Urrestricted intergovernmental 1,743,940 1,538,309 - - 1,743,940 1,538,309
Other 407,130 330,576 80,794 52,733 487,924 383,309
Total revenues 17,354,780 17,724,848 7,858.392 8,128,565 25,213,172 25,853413

Expenses:

General governmetit 3,046,921 3,195,538 - - 3,046,921 3,195,538
Public safety 8207917 8,215430 - - 8,207,917 8215430
Tramsporiation 2,347,838 2,091,876 - - 2,347,838 2,097,876
Environmental prolection 855,159 703,246 - - 835,159 703,246
Eeconomic and physical development 1,355,971 2,197,798 - - 1,355,971 2,197,798
Culture and recreational 2,007,287 2,196,855 - . 2,007,287 2,156,853
Interest and fees 65475 20,971 - - 65475 90,971
Weter and sewer 6,961,985 7,049,311 6,961,985 7,049,311
Tolal expenses 17,886,568 18,697,714 6,961,985 7,049,311 24,848,553 25,747,025
Change In net position (531,788) (572,866} 896,407 1,079,254 364,619 106,388
Wet position, July 1 29,120,587 30,093,453 34,834,585 33,755,331 63,955,172 63,848,784
Net position, e 30 $ 28583799 § 20,120,587 & 35,730,992 8 34834585 § 64319791 § 63955172

9
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Figure 4 is a graphic presentation of functional expenses with related program revenues
and grants

City of Lenoir
Expenses and Program Revenues and Operating Grants — Governmental Activities
Figure 4 '
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Figure § is a graphic presentation of governmental revenues by source.

Revenue by Source — Governmental Activities
Figure 5

DA valorem taxes W Other taxes & licenses DUnrestricted inlergovernmental
DRestricted intergovernmental BPermils & fees DSales & services
Blnvestnent earnings DMiscellanzous EPayment from ABC Board

Business-type activities: DBusiness-type activities increased the City of Lenoir’s net
position by $896,407. Key clements of this increase arc as follows:

¢ Reduction of debt

1
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Tinaneial Analysis of the Cify’s Funds

As noted earfier, the City of Lenoir uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate
compliance with finance-related legal requirements. .

Govermmental Funds. The focus of the City of Lenoir’s governmental funds is to
provide information on neat-term inflows, outflows, and balances of usable resources.
Quch information is useful in assessing the City of Lenoir’s financing requirements.
Specifically, unassigned fund balance can be a useful measure of & government’s net

resoutces available for spending at the end of the fiscal year.

The general fund is the chief operating fund of the City of Lenoir. At the end of the
current fiscal year, available fund balance of the General Fund was $3,679,923, while
total fund balance reached $5,514,342. As a measure of the general fund’s liquidity, it
may be useful to compare both available fund balance and total fund balance to total fund
expenditures, Available fund balance represents 22.69 percent of total General Fund
expenditures, while total fund balance represents 33.99 percent of that same amount, The
increase in unassigned fund balance is due mainly to the strict adherence to the budget.

At June 30, 2013, the governmental funds of City of Lenoir reported a combined fund
balance of $5,542,112 a 4.17 percent increase over last year. Included in this change in
fund balance are decreases in the Special Revenue Fund and in the Capital Projects Fund.

General Fund Budgetary Highlights Generally, budget amendments fall into one of
three categories: 1) amendments made to adjust the estimates that are used to prepate the
otiginal budget ordinance once exact information is available; 2) amendments made {0
recognize new funding amounts from external sources, such as TFederal and State grants;
and 3) increases in appropriations that become necessary to maintain services.

During the fiscal year, the City found it necessary 10 revise the General Fund budget.
These amendments are summarized as follows:

General Government, Transportation, and Fnvironmental Protection were increased by
$1,007,858, while Public Safely and Cultural & Recreation decreased by $320,059. The
resulting $687,799 increase was funded by a combination of increased revenues and
appropriated fund balance. The increase in budget was for economic development grants
and street repairs.

Proprietary Funds. The City of Lenoir’s propristary funds provide the same type of
information found in the government-wide staternents but in more detail, Unassigned net
position of the Water and Sewer Fund at the end of the fiscal year amounted to
$3,272,193. The fund’s net position increased by $896,407. The factors concerning the

12
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finances of this fand have already been addressed in the discussion of the City of
Lenoir’s business-type activities.

Capital Asset and Debt Administration

Capital assets. The City of Lenoir’s investment in capital assets for its governmental
and business-type activities as of June 30, 2013, totals $70,196,888 (net of accumulated
depreciation). (Figure 6) These assets include buildings, infrastructure, land, equipment,

plant and systems, and vehicles.

Major capital asset transactions during the year include the following additions:

¢ Major bridge construction

City of Lenoir’s Capital Assets

Figure 6
Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities Totals
2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012
Land $ 2,920,69’}" § 324,701 & 239,714 § 239714 § 3,160411  § 3,364,423
Buildings and improvements 7,587,070 7,885,810 - - 7,587,070 7,885,810
Infrastructure 12,265,677 12,816,469 - - 12,265,677 12,816,469
Equipment 2,283,802 2,772,403 3,556,390 3,607,922 5,840,192 6,380,327
Plant and systems 40,951,538 42,035,699 40,951,538 42,035,699
Construction in progress 376,991 294,436 15,009 - 392,000 204,436
Total 3 25,45&,237 $ 26,893,831 § 44,762,651 $ 45,883,335 & 70,196,888 § 72,777,166

Additional information on the City’s capital assels can be found in note TII. A. 4 and 5,
beginning on page 42 of this repoit.

Long-term Debt. As of June 30, 2013, the City of T.enoir had total debt outstanding of
$6,243,763 in a State and Water Pollution Control Revolving loans, $324,000 in a
Section 108 Loan and installment purchase contracts of $7,261,678. (Figure 7)




City of Lenoir, North Carolina
Management’s Discussion and Analysis

For the Year ended June 30, 2013

City of Lenoir’s Outstanding Debt
Revolving Loans and Installment Purchases

Figure 7
Governmental Business-fype
Activities Activities Total
2013 2012 - 2013 2012 2013 2012
Section 108 Loan 5 324,000 $§ 420,000 b 324000 § 420,000
Revolving Loans - - 06,243,763 6,818,254 6,243,763 6,818,254
Installment Purchase Contracts 1,201,589 1,731,513 6,060,089 7,541,918 7,261,678 9273431
Total $ 1,525,589 § 2,151,513 8 12303852 $ 14360172 § 13829441 % 16,501,685

The above debt of the City of Lenoir decreased by $2,682,244 (16.25%) during the past
fiscal year,

As mentioned in the financial highlights section of this document, the City of Lenoir has
an “A” rating from Standard & Poor’s, dated March of 1999; an “A2” rating from
Moody’s Investors Services dated July of 1997, and an “81" council rating from the
North Carolina Municipal Council, Inc., dated January of 1999.

North Carolina general statutes limit the amount of general obligation debt that a unit of
government can issue ta 8 percent of the total assessed value of taxable property located
within that government’s boundaries Iess statutory deductions for bonds applicable to
water systems. The legal debt margin for City of Lenoiris $112,812,353,

Additional information regardiﬁg the City of Lenoir’s long-term debt can be found in
note 111, B. 5 beginning on page 54 of this report.

Economic Factors and Next Year’s Budgets and Rates

While job losses and property values of industrial property continued to decline in the
traditional manufacturing economy of the City, the past fiscal year provided indicators
that groundwork is being laid for a transition into a more diversified economic base.

During fiscal year 2011-2012, the economic impact of the national recession was
mirrored in the economic health of Lenoir. The double-digit unemployment rate for the
Hickory-Lenoir-Morganton MSA, led to less disposable income for many Lenoir
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residents. Small job gains in micro business start-ups were counteracted by an equal
number of job losses due to business closures. Private investment dollars, especially in
downtown, declined from previous years as local banks were less likely to extend loans
for building renovations or property acquisifion.

The City continues to construct additional segments to our greenway. We now have
approximately 8.0 miles of paved greenway within the corporate limits. The projectisa
partnership involving the N.C. Department of Transportation, the City of Lenoir, and
Caldwell County Pathways Committee,

Residential growth currently taking place on the northern and western portions of
Caldwell County is particularly encowraging for the future development of retail and
service businesses within the City,

Budget Highlights for the I_*"i's:cal Year Ending June 30, 2014

Governmental Activities: In light of the continuing local economic pressures the City
of Lenoir adopted an austere budget for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2013, The
General Fund budget was based on less than 4.98 percent decrease in total revenues and
expenditures from the prior year. No new general governmental fees were added.

Business—Type Activities; Again in light of economic pressures, the City of Lenoir, in
the last 3 to 4 years has seen water consumption drop with a resulting lowering of water
and sewer revenue. The Water and Sewer Fund budget was adopted with a 0.69 percent
increase in expenditures funded with a slight rate increase.

Requests for Information

This report is designed to provide an overview of the City’s finances for those with an
interest in this area. Questions concerning any of the information found in this report or
requests for additional information should be directed to the Finance Director, City of
Lenoir, P.O. Box 958, Lenoir, N.C. 286435.

15
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City of Lenoir, North Carolina

Balance Sheet
Governntental Funds
June 30, 2013
{Exhibit C)
Specinl Noa Major Total
Revenue Governmental Governmental
General Funnd Funds Funds
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents § 4,258,432 - % - 8 4,258,432
Cash and cash equivalents-restricted 255,509 255,509
Traxes receivable (net) 325,251 325,251
Accounts recefvable (net) 644,635 644,635
Other receivables 598,447 32,853 631,300
Prepaid items 6,827 6,827
Due From Other Funds 252,115 252,115
Total assets $ 6,085,707 - § 288,362 § 6,374,069
Liabilities:
Accounts payable 242,683 2,750 5,727 251,160
Due to other funds 121,536 130,579 252,115
‘Total liabilities 242,683 124,286 136,306 503,275
Deferred Inflow of Resources:
Unavailable Properly Taxes 325,251 325,251
Memberships Paid In Advance 3,431 3431
Total Deferred Inflows of Resources 328,682 - - 328,682
Fund balances:
Non Spendable
Prepaid Items 6,827 6,827
Cemetery Care 256,314 256,314
Raestricted
Stabilization by State Stalute 1,495,197 1,495,197
Substance Conirol 34,468 34,468
Public Safety 297,927 297,927
Assigned
Land Development 468,178 468,178
Unassigned 3,211,745 (124,286) (104,258) 2,983,201
Total fund balances 5,514,342 {124,286) 152,056 5,542,112
Total liabilities, deferred inflows of resources,
and fund balances 3 6,085,707 - % 288362 § 6,374,069

The notes te the financial statements are an integrad part of this statemeil@




City of Lenoir, North Carolina

Reconciliation of the Balance Sheet of Governmental Funds o the
Statement of Net Position

June 30,2013

{Exhibit C-1)

Atnounts reported for govemnmental activities in the slatement of net position are different because:

Ending fund balance - governmental funds $ 5,542,112

Capital assets used in govermmental activities are niot financial resources and, therefore, are not
reported in the funds. 25434237

Liability for earned revenues are considered deferred inflow of resources in the fimds, 325251

Long-term liabilities, are not duc and payable in the cwrent period and therefore are not reported

in the funds. (2,712,801)
Net position of governmentel activities § 28,588,799
i9

The notes to the financial stateancnts are an integral part of this statement.




City of Lenoir, North Carolina

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances

Governmental Funds
For the Year Ended June 30,2013
{Exhibit D}

Revenues
Ad valorem taxes
Other taxes and licenses
Unresicioted intergovernmental revenues
Restricted jntergovesrnmental revenues
Penmits and fees
Sales and services
favestment earnings
Miscellangous
Payment from ABC Board
Total revenues

Expenditures
Cugrent;
General Government
Public safety
Transpoiation
Environmental protection
Economic and physical development
Cultural and recreational
Capital projects
Debt service:
Principal retirement
Interest and fees
Total expenditures
Excess (deficiency) of vevenues
over {(under) expenditures

Other financing sontces (uses)
Proceeds from disposal of capital assets
Transfers:
Total ather financing sources {uscs)
Net change in fund balances

Fund balance - beghning

Fund balance - ending

Special Non Major Tatal
Reveaue Governmental Governmental
General Tund Funds Funds
5 7,455,303 b 7,455,803
3,802,194 3,902,194
1,743,940 1,743,940
1,024,165 1,020,304 5,714 2,050,183
200,737 200,737
1,536,518 1,536,518
5431 1,133 6,504
259,034 1,925 260,959
213,630 213,630
16,341,452 1,020,304 8,772 17,370,528
2,950,137 2,950,137
7,841,887 17,977 7,850,864
1,733,257 1,733,257
785,039 785,039
521,437 844,326 1,365,763
1,815,302 71,993 1,887,295
10,561 10,561
529,924 96,000 625,924
46,631 18,844 63,475
16,223,614 1,049,140 14,561 17,283,315
117,838 {28,836) {1,789 87,213
134,295 134,295
(120,0009 120,000
4,295 - 120,000 134,295
132,133 {28,836) 118,211 221,508
5,382,209 {95,450) 33,845 5,320,604
Y 5514,342  $ {124,286) % 152,056 § 5,542,112

The notes 1o the fnancial statements are an integral part of this statement. 20




City of Lenoir, North Carolina

Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and
Changes in Fund Balances of Governmental Funds to the

Statement of Activities
For the Year Ended June 30, 2013
(Exhibit D-1)

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities are different because:

Net change in fund balances - total governinental funds

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures, However, in the statement of

aclivities the cost of those assets {s allocated over thelr estimate

d useful Tives and reported as

depreciation expense. This is the amount by which capital outlay is less than depreciation.

Revenues in the fund statements not recorded in the government wide

Revenues in the statement of activities that do not provide current fi

reparted as revenues in the funds.

The issuance of long-term debt (e.g. bonds, leases) provides current financial resouress to -

governmental fiunds, while the repayment of the prin
current financial resources of governmental funds.

cipal of long-term debt consumes the

Some expenses reported in the statement of activities do not require the use of current
financial resources and, thercfore, are not reported as expenditures in governmental funds.

Change in net position of govermmental activities

The notes to the financial statements are an integral
part of this statement.
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nancial resources are not

221,508

(1,251,276)
(134,295)

(15.748)

625,924

22,099

(531,788)




City of Lenoir, North Carolina

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances

Budget and Actual - General Fund
For the Year Ended June 30, 2013
(Exhibit E)

REVENUES
Ad valorem taxes
Qther taxes and licenses
Unrestricted intergovernmental revenues
Restricted intergovernmental revenues
Permits and fees
Sales and services
Investment earnings
Miscellaneous
Payment from ABC Board
Total revenues

EXPENDITURES
Current:
General Goverrement
Public safely
Transportation
Envicomnental protection
Economic and physical development
Cultural and recreational
Debt service:
Principal retivement
Interest and fees
Total expenditures
Excess (deficiency} of revenues
over (under) expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Appropriated fund balance
Proceeds from disposal of capital assets
Transfers out:
To Capital Projects
Total other financing sources (uses)

Net change in find balances

FUND BALANCE - BEGINNING
FUND BALANCE - ENDING

The notes ta the finanefal statements are an integral
part of this statement.

Variance
Withs Final
Original Final Positive
Budget Budget Actual (Negative)
7,312,479 7,312,479 % 7,455,803 § 143,324
3,865,447 3,865,447 3,902,194 36,741
1,515,000 1,515,000 1,743,940 228,940
727,988 1,027,718 1,024,165 {3,553)
229,000 229,000 200,737 (28,263)
1,648,134 1,648,134 1,536,518 (L11,616)
40,400 40,400 5431 (34,96%)
113,300 113,300 259,034 145,734
207,500 207,500 213,630 6,130
15,059,248 15,958,978 16,341,452 382,474
2,357,914 2,054,833 2,950,137 4,696
7,962,625 7,849,624 7,841,887 7,137
1,382,261 1,739,261 1,733,257 6,004
731,827 785,826 785,039 787
521,313 521,313 521,437 {124)
2,031,666 1,824,608 1,815,302 9,306
520,926 529,926 529,924 A
46,656 46,656 46,631 25
15,564,248 16,252,047 16,223,614 28,433
95,000 {293,06%) 117,838 410,907
388,069 (388,069}
25,000 25,000 134,295 109,295
(120,000} (120,000) {120,000} -
{95,000) 293,069 14,295 {278,774}
. - 132,133 § 132,133
5,382,209
$ 5,514,342
22




City of Lenoir, North Carolina

Statement of Net Position
Proprietary Funds

June 30,2013
(Bxhibit F)
Enterprise Fund
‘Water
and Sewer
Fund
Assefs
Current assels
Cash and cash equivalents 2,958,831
Accounts receivable (net) 605,430
Inventories 10,581
Resticted Cash and cash equivalenis 118,060
Total current assets 3,752,902
Noncutrent assets
Capital asseis, net 44,762,631
Total noncwrent assets 44,762,651
Total assets 48,515,553
Liabilities
Current liabifities
Accounts payable 201,145
Tnstallment purchase contracts - current 1,535,263
Revolving loan payable - current 574,492
Customer deposits 118,060
Compensated absences payable 72,000
Total current liabilities 2,500,960
Noncurrent liabilities
Revolving loan payable 5,669,271
Installment purchase contracts payable 4,524,326
OPEB Liability 48,764
Compensated absences payable 40,740
Total noncurrent labilities 10,283,601
Totat Habilities 12,734,561
Net Pasition
Net investinent in capital asseis 32,458,799
Unrestricted Met Position 3,272,193
‘botal Net Position 35,730,992

‘Fhe notes to the financial stalements are an integral
part of this siateraent.
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City of Lenoir, North Carolina

Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Net Position

Proprietary Funds
Year Ended June 30,2013
(Bxhibit G)

Operating revenues
Water sales
Wastewater treatment charges
Waler and sewer taps
Late payment charges
Miscellaznous
Total operating revenues

Qperaling expenses
Rhodiiss Water Treatinent Plant
Water distribution
Water resources
Wastewater collection
Wastewater pretreatment
Gunpowder Wastewater Treatment Plant
Lower Creck Wastewater Treatment Plant
Depreciation
Total operating expenses

Operating income (foss)
Nonoperating revenue (expense)
Interest earned on investments

Interest paid on long-term debt

Total nonoperating revenue (expense)

Change in Net Position

‘T'oial Net Position - begiuning, as previously reported

Total Net Position - ending

2 neles to ie financial statements ars en integral

part of this statement.
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Enterprise Fund

Water
and Sewer

TFund

5,007,352
2,498,344
20,532
251,370
78,318

7,855,916

1,189,579
1,094,348
491,894
540,551
177,193
532,464
1,211,332
1,237,304

6,474,703

1,381,211

2,476
(487,280)

(484,804)

896,407

34,834,585

35,730,992




City of Lenoir, North Carolina

Statement of Cash Flows
Proprietary Funds

Year Ended June 30, 2013
(Exhibit H)

Operating activities
Cash received from customers and users
Cash paid to suppliers for goods and services
Cash paid for employee benefits
Customer deposits returned
Nei cash provided by (used in)
operating activities

Capital and related financing activities
Acquisition and construction of capital assets
Principal paid on debt
Interest paid on debt

Net cash provided (used) by capital and
related financing activities

Investing activities
Interest on investments
Net cash provided (used) in investing activities

Net increase in cash and cash
equivalents/investments

Cash and cash equivalents/invesiments
Beginning of year

End of year

The notes 1o the financial statements are an integral
part of this stafement, 25

Enterprise Fund

Water
and Sewer
Fuand

7,788,110
©(2,943,336)
(2,422,806)
(3,385)

2,418,583

(116,620)
(2,056,320)
(487,280)

(2,660,220)

2,476

2,476

(239,161)

3,316,052

3,076,891




City of Lenoir, North Carolina

Statement of Cash Flows
Proprietary Funds

Year Ended June 30, 2013
(Exhibit H)

Reconciliation of operating income (loss)

to uet cash provided by

(used in) operating activities

QOperating income {loss)

Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss)
1o net cash provided by (used in) operating
activities:

Depreciation

Change in assets and liabilities
(Increase) decrease in accounts receivable and accruals
(Increase) decrease in inventory
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable and
accrued liabilities
Increase (decrease) in customer deposits
Tncrease (decrease) in compensated absence payable
Increase {decrease) in OPEB
Total adjustiients

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities

‘The notes 1o the financial statements are an integral

part of this statertent. 26

Enterprise Fund

Water
and Sewer
Fund

1,381,211

1,237,304

(67,806)
(1,199)

(124,142)

(3,385)
1,350
1,250

1,037,372

2,418,383




City of Lenoir, North Carolina

Statement of Fiduciary Net Position

Fiduciary Funds
June 30, 2013
(Exhibit I)
Agency
Tund
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 12,261
Total assets 3 12,261
Liabilities
Due to agency $ 12,261
Total liabilities $ 12,261

The noies to the financial stalements are an integral
part of this statement.
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City of Lenoir, North Carolina

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended June 30, 2013

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DESCRIPTION OF FUNDS

The accounting policies of the City of Lenoir and its discretely presented component
units conform to generally accepted accounting principles as applicable to governments.
The following is a summary of the more significant accounting policies:

A. Reporting Entity - The City of Lenoir (City) is a municipal corporation of the State
of North Carolina. It is governed by an elected board of eight consisting of a mayor and
a seven-member council, These financial statements present the City and its component
units, legally-separate entities for which the City is financially accountable. The
discretely presented component units below are reported in separate columns in the
financial statements to emphasize that it is legally separate from the City.

City of Lenoir Board of Aleoholic Control

The members of the City of Lenoir Alcoholic Control's (ABC Board) governing board
are appointed by the City. In addition, the ABC Board is required by State statute to
distribute the majority of its surpluses to the General Fund of the City. A smaller portion
of the ABC Board's surpluses are distributed to the Caldwell County School
Administrative Unit. The ABC Board, which has a June 30 year end, is presented as a
proprietary fund (discrete presentation). Complete financial statements for the ABC
Board may be obtained from the entity's administrative offices at City of Lenoir ABC
Board, ABC Court, Lenoir, NC 28645,

Lenoir Tourism Development Authority Board

The members of the Lenoir Tourism Development Authority’s (LTDA Board) governing
board are appointed by the City. The LTDA collects a 3% room occupancy tax from the
rental of any room, lodging or accommodation furnished by a hotel, motel, inn, tourist
camp, or similar place within the city. Complete financial statements for the LTDA
board may be obiained City Hall, City of Lenoir, 801 West Ave., NW, Lenoir, NC 28645,

B. Basis of Presentfation

Government-wide Statements: The statement of net position and the statement of
activities display information about the primary government and its component unit.
These statements include the financial activities of the overall government. Eliminations
have been made to minimize the double counting of internal activities. These statements
distinguish between the governmental and business-type activitles of the City.
Governmental activities generally ave financed through taxes, intergovernmental
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City of Lenoir, North Carolina

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended June 30, 2013

revenues, and other non-exchange transactions. Business-type activities are financed in
whole or in part by fees charged to external parties.

The statement of activities presents a comparison between direct and program revenucs
for the different business<type activities of the City and for each function of the City’s
governmental activities. Direct expenses are those that are specifically associated with a
program or function and, therefore, are clearly identifiable to a particular function.
Indirect expense allocations that have been made in the funds have been reversed for the
statement of activities. Program revenues include (a) fees and charges paid by the
tecipients of goods or services offered by the programs and (b) grants and contributions
that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular
program. Taxes and other items not properly included among program revenues are
reported instead as general revenues. City of Lenoir’s policy for eliminating internal
activity in the government-wide statement of activities indicate that interfund services
provided and used are not eliminated in the process of consolidation.

Fund Financial Statements: The fund financial statements provide information about the
City’s funds. Separate statements for each fand category — governmentad, propriefary and
fiduciary — -are presented. The emphasis of fund financial statements is on major
governmental and enterprise funds, each displayed in a separate column. All remaining
governmental and enterprise funds are aggregated and reported as nonmajor funds.

Proprietary fund operating revenues, such as charges for services, result from exchange
transactions associated with the principal activity of the fund. Exchange transactions are
those in which each party receives and gives up essentially equal values. Nonoperating
revenues, such as subsidies and investment earnings, result from non-exchange
transactions or ancillary activities.

The City reports the following major governmental funds:

General Fund - The General Fund is the general operating fund of the City. It is used to
account for all financial resources except those required to be accounted for in another
fund. The primary revenue sources are ad valorem taxes and state-shared revenues. The
primary expenditures are for public safety, streets and highways, sanitation, parks and
recreation, and general government services. The City also maintains a separate sub-fund
for the Downtown Service District for accounting putposes. This sub-fund has been
consolidated into the General Fund for reporting purposes. Debt service payments for
general long-term debt are accounted for in the General Fund.

Special Revenue Fund - The Special Revenue Fund accounts for specific revenue
sources (other than expendable trusts or major capital projects) that are legally restricted
to expenditures for specified purposes. The City has ten Special Revenue Fund projects
including the Governor’s Highway Safety Grant, Fit Community Grant; PARTF Grant,
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City of Lenoir, North Carolina

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended Juns 30, 2013

2009, 2010, 2011 and 2012 Community Development Entitlement Grants; and 2010,
2011 and 2012 Unifour HOME Consortium Grants.

The City Reports the following nonmajor governmental funds:
Capital Project Fund

The Capital Project Fund accounts for financial resources to be used for the acquisition
. and construction of major capital facilities (other than those financed by proprietary funds
and trust funds). The City has three projects within the Capital Project Fund: the
Fairview Strect Bridge, Downtown Streetscape, and Greenway.

Permanent Fund

The Permanent Fund accounts for the Perpetual Care Fund. The interest earned on the
nonexpendable invested principal is used for the ongoing maintenance of the City’s
cemetery.

The City reports the following major enterprise fund:

Water and Sewer Fund - The Water and Sewer Fund is used to account for operations
that are financed and operated in a manner similar to private business enterprises - where
the intent of the governing body is that the costs (expenses, including depreciation) of
providing goods or services to the general public on a continuing basis be financed or
recovered primarjly through user charges; or where the governing body has decided that
periodic determination of revenues earned, expenses incurred, andfor net income is
appropriate for capital maintenance, public policy, management control, accountability,
or other purposes. Water and sewer capital projects are included in the Water and Sewer
Capital Project Fund.

The City reports the following fund type:

Agency Fund ~ Agency funds are custodial in nature and do not involve the
measurement of operating results. Agency funds are used to account for assets the City
holds on behalf of others. The City maintains the following agency fund: CheckFree Pay
which accounts for collection of payments of AT&T and Piedmont Natural Gas
customers and flex spending. We excluded these activities from the City’s government-
wide financial statement because the city cannot use these assets to finance its operation.

C. Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting — In accordance with North Carolina

" General Statutes, all funds of the City are maintained during the year using the modified
accrual basis of accounting.
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City of Lenoir, North Carolina
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended June 30, 2013

Government-wide, Proprietary and Fiduciary Fund Financial Statements. The
government-wide financial statements are reported using fhe economic “resources
measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting, as are the proprietary fund
financial statements. The City’s one fiduciary fund (an agency fund) has no
measurement focus and is excluded from the government-wide financial statements.
Revenues are recorded when eamed and expenses are recorded at the {ime liabilities are
incurred, regardless of when the related cash flows take place. Nonexchange fransactions,
in which the City gives (or receives) value without directly receiving (or giving) equal
value in exchange, include property taxes, grants and donations, On an accrual basis,
revenue from property taxes is recognized in the fiscal year in which all eligibility
requirements have been satisfied.  Govermmental Fund Financial Statements.
Governmental funds are reported using the current financial resources measurement focus
and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Under this method, revenues are recognized
when measurable and available, Expenditures are recorded when the related fund liability
is incurred, except for principal and interest on general long-term debt, claims and
judgments, and compensated absences, which are recognized as expendifures In
governmental funds, Proceeds of general long-term debt and acquisitions under capital
leases are reported as other financing sources.

The Cily considers all revenues available if they are collected within 90 days after year-
end, except for property taxes. Ad valorem taxes receivable are not accrued as revenue
because the amount is not susceptible to accrual. At June 30, taxes receivable are
materially past due and are not considered to be an available resource to finance the
operations of the current year. Also, as of January 1, 1993, State law altered the
procedures for the assessment and collection of property taxes on registered motor
vehicles in North Carolina. Effective with this change in the law, Caldwell County is
responsible for billing and collecling the property taxes on registered motor vehicles on
behalf of all municipalities and special tax districts in the County, including the City of
Lenoir and its special downtown district known as Main Street Lenoir. For motor
vehicles registered under the staggered system, property taxes are due the first day of the
fourth month after the vehicles are registered. The billed taxes are applicable to the fiscal
year in which they become due. Therefore, the City's vehicle taxes for vehicles registered
in Caldwell County from March 2012 through February 2013 apply to the fiscal year
ended June 30, 2013, Uncollected taxes, which were billed during this period, are shown
as a receivable in these financial statements and are offset by deferred revenues.

Sales taxes collected and held by the State at year-end on behalf of the city are
recognized as revenue, Intergovernmental revenues and sales and services are not
susceptible to accrual because generally they are not measwable until received in cash.
(irant revenues, which are unearned at ycar-end, are recorded as unearned revenues.

Under terms of grant agreements, the City funds certain programs by a combination of

specific cost-reimbursement grants, categorical block grants, and general revenues. Thus,
when program expenses are incurred, there are both restricted and unrestricted net assets
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City of Lenoir, North Carolina
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended June 30, 2013

available to finance the program. It is the City’s policy to first apply cost-reimbursement
grant resources to such programs, followed by categorical block grants, and then by
general revenues.

D. Budgetary Data - As required by the N. C. Local Government Budget and Fiscal
Control Act (G.S. 159), the governing board must adopt by July 1 an annual balanced
budget ordinance for all governmental and proprietary funds except for those funds,
which operate under project ordinances. The City has adopted project ordinances for the
Capital Projects and Special Revenue Funds. The annual budget is prepared on the
modified accrual basis of accounting to be compatible with the accounting system in
recording transactions, as required by G.S. 159-26(c).

Appropriations are made at the departmental level and are amended as necessary by the
governing board. All appropriations (other than funds with multi-year budgets) lapse at
year-end. Expenditures may not legally exceed appropriations at the departmental level
for all annually budgeted funds and at the project level for project ordinances. The City
Manager is authorized to transfer appropriations within a depariment; however, any
revisions that alter total expenditures of any department must be approved by the
governing board. The amended budget ordinance as of June 30, 2013, is included in the
financial statements but has been restructured to conform to the actual data. The City's
governing board enacted supplemental budget ordinances during the fiscal year ended
June 30, 2013. The ordinances increased appropriations by $726,199 in the City’s
General Fund and $0 in the City's Water and Sewer Fund.

As required by G.S. 159-26(d), the City maintains encumbrance accounts, which are
considered to be "budgetary accounts”. Encumbrances outstanding at year-end represent '
the estimated amounts of the expenditures ultimately to result if unperformed contracts in
process at year-end are completed. Encumbrances outstanding at year-end do not
constitute expenditures or liabilities and are either charged to an appropriation in the
following year or the contractual commitment is cancelled. '

E. Assets, Liabilities, and Fund Equity

1. Deposits and Investments - All deposits of the City, LTDA and the ABC Board are
made in board-designated official depositories and are collateralized as required by G.S.
15931, Official depositories may be esiablished with any bank or savings and loan
whose principal office is located in North Carolina, Also, the City, LTDA and ABC
Board may establish time deposit accounts in the form of NOW accounts, SuperNOW,
money market accounts, and certificates of deposit. State law, G.S. 159-30(c) authorizes
the City and the ABC Board to invest in obligations of the United States or obligations
fully guaranteed both as to principal and interest by the United States; obligations of the
State of North Carolina; bonds and notes of any North Carolina local government or
public authority; obligations of certain nonguaranteed federal apencies; certain high
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City of Lenoir, North Carolina
Notes to the Financial Statements
Foi the Year Ended June 30, 2013

quality issues of commercial paper and bankers' acceptances; and the North Carolina
Capital Management Trust (NCCMT); a SEC-registered mutual fund.

The City, LTDA and the ABC Board’s investments with 2 maturity of morc than one
year at acquisition and non-money market investments are catried at fair value as
determined by quoted market prices. The NCCMT Cash Portfolio's securities are valued
at fair value, which is the NCCMT's share price. The NCCMT Term Portfolio's
securitics are valued at fair value. Money market investments that have a remaining
maturity at the time of purchase of one year or less and non-participating interest carnings
and investment contracts are reported at amortized cost.

In accordance with State law, the City has invested in securities which are callable
and which provide for periodic interest ratc increases in specific increments until
maturity. These investments are stated at cost in the City's financial statements.

2. Cash and Cash Equivalents - The City pools money from several funds to facilitate
disbursement and investment and to maximize investment income. Therefore, all cash
and investments are essentially demand deposits and are considered cash and cash
equivalents, The City, LTDA and the ABC Board consider all highly liquid investments
(including restricted assets) with a maturity of three months or less when purchased to be
cash and cash equivalents.

2a. Restricted Asseis — Permanent Fund restricted cash of $255,509 represents the
nonexpendable pottion of the cemetery funds. Customer deposits of $118,060 are also
shown as restricted cash.

3. Ad Valorem Taxes Receivable - According fo the North Carolina General Statutes,
ad valorem taxes levied on July 1, the beginning of the fiscal year, are due September 1
but penalties do not accrue until the following January 6 when taxes are considered past
due and the property is subject to Hen. The taxes levied are based on the assessed values
as of January 1, 2012, As allowed by State law, the City has established a schedule of
discounts that apply to taxes, which are paid prior to the due date. In the City's General
Fund, ad valorem tax revenues are reported net of such discounts.

4. Allowances for Doubtful Accounts - All receivables that historically experience
uncollectible accounts are shown net of an allowance for doubtful accounts. This amount
is estimated by analyzing the percentage of receivables that were written off in prior

years.

5. Inventories - Inventories of the City and ABC Board are maintained for all enterprise
fund supplies. They are valued at the lower of cost (first-in, first-out) or market.
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City of Lenoir, North Carolina

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Fnded June 30, 2013

6. Capital Assets — Capital assets are defined by the City as assets with an initial
individual cost of more than $1,000, The City and the ABC Board’s capital assets are
recorded at historical cost when purchased or fair market value at the time of donation.
Certain items acquired in earlier years are recorded at estimated historical cost. General
infrastructure assets acquired prior to July 1, 2002, consist of the road, bridges and
drainage networks that were acquired or that received substantial improvements
subsequent to July 1, 1980, and arc reported at estimated historical costs. The cost of
normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially
extend assets’ lives are not capitalized.

The City's capital assets are being depreciated on a straight-line basis over their
estimated useful lives as follows: '

N Estimated
Asset Class Useful Lives

Tnfrastructure 15-50
Buildings 45 -50
Plant and systems 45 - 50
Improvements 15-20
Vehicles 6-8

Furniture and equipment 10-15
Computer equipment 5-10

Capital assets of the ABC Board are depreciated over their useful lives on a straight-line
basis as follows:

Estimated
Asset Class Useful Lives
Land, improvements and buildings 8 - 40
Store equipment 2-20
Office equipment 5-10

7. Long-Term Obligations — In the government-wide financial statements, and
proprietary fund types in the fund financial statements, long-term debt and other Jong-
term obligations are reported as liabilities in the applicable governmental activities,
business-type activities, or proprietary fund type statement of net assets. Bond premiums
and discounts, as well as issuance costs, are deferred and amortized over the life of the
bonds using the straight-line method that approximates the effective interest method.
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City of Lenoir, North Carolina

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended June 30, 2013

Bonds payable, if any, are reported net of the applicable bond premiums or discount.
Bond issuance costs are expensed in the reporting in which they occured. Prepaicl
insurance costs and expenses over the life of the debt.

In fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize bond premiums ‘and
discounts, as well as bond issuance costs, during the current period. The face amount of
debt issued is reported as other financing sources. Premiums received on. debt issuances
are reported as other financing sources while discounts on debt issnances are reported as
other financing uses. Issuance costs, whether or not withheld from the actual debt
proceeds received, are reported as debt service expenditures.

8. Compensated Absences - The vacation policies of the City and the ABC Board
provide for the accumulation of up to thirty (30) days carned vacation leave with such
leave being fully vested when earned. For the City’s government-wide and proprietary
funds and the ABC Board, an expense and a liability for compensated absences and the
salary-related payments are recorded as the teave is earned. The City has assumed a last-
in, first-out method of using accumulated compensated time. The portion of that time that
is estimated to be used in the next fiscal year has been designated as a current liability in
the government-wide financial statements.

Both the City and the ABC Board's sick leave policies provide for an unlimited
accumulation of eamed sick leave. Sick leave does not vest, but any unused sick leave
accumulated at the time of retirement may be used in the determination of length of
service for retirement benefit purposes. Since neither the City nor the ABC Board has
any obligation for the accumulated sick leave until it is actually taken, no accrual for sick
Ieave has been made,

9, Deferrcd Inflow of Resources — In addition to liabilities, the statement of financial
position will sometimes report 4 separate section for deferred inflows of resources. This
separate financial statement element, Deferred Inflows of Resources, represents an
acquisition of net position that applies to a future period and so will not be recognized as
revenue until then, The city has two items that meet the eriterion for this category —
property taxes receivable and memberships paid in advance.

10. Net Position/Fund Balance — Net position in the government-wide and proprietary
fund financial statements are classified as net investment in capital assets; restricted; and
unrestricted. Resiricted net position represents constrainis on resources that are either
externally imposed by creditors, grantors, coniributors, or laws or regulations of other
governments or imposed by law through state statute.

State law [G.S. 159-13(b)] restricts appropriation of fund balance or fund equity to an
amount not to exceed the sum of cash and investments minus the sum of liabilities,
encumbrances, and deferred revenues arising from cash receipts as these amounts stand at
the close of the fiscal year preceding the budget year.
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The governmental fund types classify fund balances as follows:

Nonspendable Fund Balanee — This classification includes amounts that cannot be spent
because they are cither (a) not in spendable form or (b) legally or contractually required
to be maintained intact.

Prepaid Items — Portion of fund balance that is not an available resource because it
represents services rendered for the subsequent years, which are not spendable resources.

Perpetual Maintenance — Cemetery resources that sre required to be retained in

perpetuity for maintenance of the City of Lenoir Cemeteries.

Restricted Fund Balance — This classification includes amounts that are restricted to
specific purposes externally imposed by creditors or imposed by law.

Restricted for Stabilization by State Statue - Represents the amount of revenue
recognized, but not available for appropriation. This amount is usually comprised of
receivables, not offset by deferred revenues, and due from other funds,

Restricted for Substance Control - Portion of fund balance that is available for
appropriation but legally segregated for qualifying law enforcement expenditures.

Restricted for Public Safety — Portion of fund balance that is available for
appropriation but legally segregated for qualifying public safety expendituzes.

Assigned Fund Balance — Portion of fand balance that City of Lenoir intends to use for
specific purposes.

Assigned for Land Development — Portion of fund balance set aside for land
development.

Unussigned Tund Balance - Portion of fund balance that has not been testricted,
committed, of assigned to specific purposes or other fonds,

For purposes of fund balance classifications, funds are to be spent from restricted fund
balance first followed by committed fund balance, assigned fund balance and last
unassigned fund balance.

F, Management listimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to make
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estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and
the reported amounts of revenues and expenditures/expenses during the reporting period.
Actual resuits could differ from those estimates.

G. Reconciliation of Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements

1. Explanation of certain differences between the governmental fund balance sheet
and the government-wide statement of net assets — The governmental fund balance
sheet includes reconciliation between fund balance — total governmental funds and
net position — governmental activities as reported in the government-wide statement
of net position. The net adjustment of 23,046,687 consists of several elements as
follows:

Description "~ Amount

C‘_a:pAi_tal asset_é__in go_w;rnﬁménta} qcﬁvities are not financial
resources and are therefore not reported in the funds (total
‘capital assets on government- wide statement governmental

activities colunm) _ . $ 73,661,794
Less accumulated depreoiation ST T (48,227,55T)
Netcapitaiassets | 7T 25434237

Tiabilities for revenue are considered deferred inflows of N
resources in the fund staternernts ) _ ) o 325,251

‘Liabilties that, because they are not due and payable in
‘the current period, do not require current resources ta pay
‘and are therefore not recorded in the fund statements:

_ Leases and installment financing o ' o ; . ”('1_,525,58_9.)'
_Conpensated absences L Gt (199,660);
Pension obligation © g B (687,552)

Total adjustment 11§ 23,046,687
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2, Explanation of certain differences hetween the governmental fund statement of
revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balance and the government-wide
statement of activities — The governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures,
and changes in fund balances includes a reconciliation between net changes in fund
balances — total governmental funds and changes in net position of governmental
aclivities as reported in the government-wide statement of activitics. There are
several elements of that total adjustment of $(753,296) as follows:

Description Amount

Capital outlay expenditures recorded in the fund statements
but capitalized as assets in the statement of activities $ 485,810

Depreciation expense, the allocation of those assets over
their useful lives, is recorded in the statement of activities,
but not in the find statements (1,737,086)

Principat payments on debt owed are recorded as a use of
funds in the fund statements but again affect only the
statement of net assets in the government-wide statements 625,924

1.aw Enforcement Separation Allowance expenses reported

in the stafement of activities do not require the use of current

resources to pay and are not recorded as expenditures in the

fund statements . 13,215

OPEB expenses reported in the statement of activities do not (9,161}
require the use of current resources fo pay and are not recorded
as expenditures in the fund staterments

Compensated absences are accrued in the government-wide
statements but not in the fund statements because they do not

use current resources 18,045
Sale of Fixed Assets recorded in the find statement (134,295)

Reveiues reported in the staiement of activities that do not provide
current resources are not recorded as revenues in the fund

statements:
Recording of tax receipts in the fund statements 58,275

Gain on Sale of Fixed Assets (74,023)
Total adjustment $  (753296)
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II. SEEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE and ACCOUNTABILITY

A. Excess of Expenditures over Appropriations - For the year ended June 30,
2013, expenditures exceeded budgeted amounts at the department level as

follows:
Fund/Department Excess Fund/Department Fxcess
General Fund: Enterprise Fund

Economic Development $1,488 Lower Creek Plant $10,938

Interest Paid 53,010
These over-cxpenditures were immaterial and approved by the Board subsequent
to year-end. The city annually files a corrective action plan. It is the city’s
intention to amend their budget on a more timely basis in the future.

B. The Special Revenue Fund and Capital Project Fund had fund balance deficit of
$124,286 and $104,258 respectively. The General Fund will fund the deficit in futare

years,

III. DETAIL NOTES ON ALL FUNDS

A, Assets

1. Deposits - All of the City's, LTDA’s and ABC Board's deposits are either insured or
collateralized by using one of two options. Under the Dedicated Method, all deposits that
exceed the federal depository insurance coverage are collateralized with securities held
by the City's or ABC Board's agent in the units' name. Under the Pooling Method, a
collateral pool, all uninsured deposits are collateralized with securities held by the State
Treasurer's agents in the name of the State Treasurer. Since the State Treasuter is acting
in a fiduciary capacity for the City, LTDA and the ABC Board, these deposits are
considered to be held by the City's and the ABC Board's agents in their names. The
amount of the pledged collateral is based on an approved averaging method for non-
interest bearing deposits and the actual current balance for interest bearing deposits,

Depositories using the Pooling Method report to the State Treasurer the adequacy of their
pooled collateral covering uninsured deposits. The State Treasurer does not confirm this
information with the unit or the escrow agent. Because of the inability to measure the
exact amounts of collateral pledged for the City, LTDA or the ABC Board under the
Pooling Method, the potential exists for undercollateralization, and this risk may increase
in periods of high cash flows. However, the State Treasurer of North Carolina enforces
strict standards of financial stability for each Pooling Method depository. The City,
I.TDA and ABC Board have no policy regarding outstanding risk for deposits.

At year-end, the City's deposits, including fiduciary funds, had a carrying amount of
$2,448,853 and a bank balance of $2,511,364. Of the bank balance, $1,000,000 was
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covered by federal depository insurance with the remainder held in Pooling Method
depositories as discussed above.

At year-end, the ABC Board's deposits had a catrying amount of $214,400 and a bank
balance of $210,812. The bank balance was covered by federal depository insurance.

At year-end, the LTDA’s deposits had a carrying amouit of $44,667 and a bank balance
of $44,667. The bank balance was covered by federal depository insurance.

2. Tnvestments - General Statute 159-30(c) authorizes the City and the ABC Board to
invest in obligations of the U. S, Treasury; obligations of any agency of the United States
of America, provided the payment of interest and principal of such obligation is fully
guaranteed by the United States; obligations of the State of North Carolina; bonds and
notes of any North Carolina government or public authority; obligations of cerfain non-
guaranteed federal agencies; certain high quality issues of commercial paper and bankers’
acceptances; and The North Carolina Capital Management Trust, an SEC-registered
mutual fund. The City pools monies from several funds to facilitate disbursement and
investment and maximize investment income. The City and ABC Board have no policy
regarding credit risk for investments.

The City held no investments that were categorized by level or risk at year-end. All
invested funds were with The North Carolina Capital Management Trust, which is
exempt from risk categorization because the City does not own any identifiable
securities, but is a shareholder of a percentage of the fund. As of June 30, 2013, the
credit rating of the fund was AAAm by Standard and Poor’s, with a weighted average
maturity of 51 days. Total investments are as follows:

Carrying Fair
Value Value
North Carolina
Capital Management Trust $ 5,152,255 $ 5,152255
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3. Receivables - Allowances for Doubtful Accounts - The amounts shown in the
Balance Sheet and the Statement of Net Assets are net of the following allowances for

doubtful accounts:

General Fund:
Allowance for Uncollectible
Property Taxes Receivable $ 881,127
Allowance for Miscellaneous
General Fund Receivables 27,035
Subtotal 908,162

Water and Sewer Fund:
Allowance for Uncollectible

Water and Sewer Receivables 200,000
Total $ 1,108,162

4. General Capital Assets

The capital asset activity for the governmental activities as of June 30, 2013 was as
follows: '

Beginning Ending
Balances Increases Decreases Balances
Governmental activites:
Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land $ 3,124,711 $ (204,014) $ 2,920,697
Construction work in progress 294,436 82,555 376,991
Total capital assets not being depreciated 3,419,147 82,555 204,014) 3,297,688
Capital assets being depreciated:
Buildings and improvements 14,739,873 14,739,873
Infrastructure 43,122,548 43,122,548
Equipmsnt 12,314,777 403,255 (216,347} 12,501,685
Total capilal assets being depreciated 70,177,198 403,255 (216,347) 70,364,106
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings and improvements 6,854,063 298,740 7,152,803
Infrastructure 30,306,079 550,792 30,856,871
Equipment 9,542,372 887,554 (212,043) 10,217,883
Total accumulated depreciation _46,702,514 $ 1,737,086 & (212,043) 48,227,557
Total capital assets being depreciated, net. 23,474,684 22,136,549
Total capital assets - governmental activities $ 26,893,831 §  25434,237
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Depreciation was charged to functions/programs of the primary government as follows:

General Government $163,951
Public Safety 559,390
Transportation 689,769
Environmental Protection 97,895
Economic and Physical Development 5,141
Cultural and Recreational 220,940
Total Depreciation Expense $1,737,086

5. Business-Type Capital Assets

The capital asset activity for the business-type activities at June 30, 2013, was as follows:

Beginning Ending
Balances Increases Decreases Balances
Business-type activitles (Water and Sewer Fund)
Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land $ 239,714 $ 239,714
Construction work in progress - 15,009 15,009
Total capital assets not being depreciated 239,714 15,009 - 254,723
Capital assets being depreciated:
Plant and systemus 61,213,867 61,213,867
Equipment 6,433,424 101,611 (79,285) 6,455,750
"Total capital assets being depreciated 67,647,291 101,611 (79,285) 67,669,617
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Plant and systems 19,178,168 1,084,161 70,262,329
Equipment 2,825,502 153,143 (79,285) 2,899,360
‘Total accumulated depreciation 22,003,670 § 1237304 § (79,285) 23,161,689
Total capital assets being depreciated, net 45,643,621 44,507,923
Total capital assets - business {ype
activites {Water and Sewer Fund) $ 45,833,335 $ 44,762,651

6. Construction Commitmenis — The City of Lenoir has no active construction
projects as of June 30, 2013,
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7. Component Unit Capital Assets

The capital assets of the ABC Board at June 30, 2013, are composed of the following:

Beginning Ending
Balances Tncreases  Decreases Balances
Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land $ 155,849 £ 155,849
Total capital assets not being depreciated 155,849 - - 155,849
Capital assets being depreciated:
Buildings and improvements 563,616 563,616
Store equipment 168,684 2,381 171,005
Office equipment 49,272 , 49,272
Total capital assets being depreciated 739,496 2,381 - 783,953
Less accumulated depreciation for: :
Buildings and improvements 278,817 16,083 294,900
Store equipment 108,047 12,307 . 120,354
Office equipment 27,771 3917 31,688
Total accumulated depreciation 319,249  $ 32,307 % - 446,942
Total capital assets being depreciated, net 420,247 337,011
Total capital assels § 576,096 $ 492,860

B. Liabilities
1. Pension Plan Obligations
a. Local Governmental Employees' Retirement System

1. Plan Description. The City of Lenoir contributes to the statewide Local
Governmental Employees' Retirement System (LGERS), a cost-sharing multiple-
employer defined benefit pension plan administered by the State of Noith
Carolina, LGERS provides retirement and disability benefits to plan members
and beneficiaries. Article 3 of G. S. Chapter 128 assigns the authority to establish
and amend benefit provisions to the North Carolina General Assembly. The
Local Governmental Employees' Retitement System is included in the
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) for the State of North Carolina,
The State's CAFR includes financial statements and required supplementary
information for LGERS. That report may be obtained by  writing to the Office
of the Siate Controller, 1410 Mail Service Center, Raleigh, North Carolina 27699,

2. Funding Policy. Plan members are required to contribute six percent of their
annual covered salary. The City is required to contribute at an actuarially
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determined rate. For the City, the current rate for employees not engaged in law
enforcement and for law enforcement officers is 13.28% and 13.49%,
respectively, of annual covered payroll. The contribution requirements of
members and of the City of Lenoir are established and may be amended by the
North Carolina General Assembly. The City's contributions to LGERS for the
years ended June 30, 2011, 2012, and 2012 were $1,006,031, $1,164,712 and
$1,145,939 respectively. The contributions made by the City equaled the required
contributions for each year.

b. Law Enforcement Officers’ Special Separation Allowance

1. Plan Description. The City of Lenoir administers a public employee
retirement system (the “"Separation Allowance"), a single-employer defined
benefit pension plan that provides retirement benefits to the City's qualified sworn
law enforcement officers. The Separation Allowance is equal to .85 percent of
the annual equivalent of the base rate of compensation most recently applicable to
the officer for each year of creditable service. The retirement benefits are not
subject to any increases in salary or retirement allowances that may be authorized
by the General Assembly, Article 12D of G.8. Chapter 143 assigns the authority
to establish and amend benefii provisions to the North Carolina General

Asgsembly.

All full-time law enforcement officers of the City are covered by the Separation
Allowance. At December 31, 2012, the Separation Allowance's membership

consisted of:

Retirees currently receiving benefits 7

Terminated employees entitled to but
not yet receiving benefits 0
Active plan members 54
Total ' 61

2. Summary of Sigpificant Accounting Policies.

Basis of Acconnting, The City has chosen to fund the Separation Allowance on a
pay- as-you-go basis. Pension cxpenditures are made from the General Fund,
which is maintained on the modified accrual basis of accounting.

Method Used to Value Investments. No funds are set aside to pay benefits and
administration costs. These expenditures are paid as they come due.
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3. Contributions. The City is required by Article 12D of G. S. Chapter 143 to provide
these retirement benefits and has chosen to fund the benefit payments on a pay-as-
you-go basis through appropriations made in the General Fund operating budget.
The City's obligation to-contribute to this plan is established and may be amended
by the North Carolina General Assembly. There  were no contributions made
by employees, The annual requived contribution for the current year was
determined as part of the December 31, 2012 actuarial valuation using the
projected unit credit actuarial cost method. The actuarial assumptions included (a)
5 00% investment rate of return, compounded anmually, (net of administrative
expenses) and (b) projected salary increases of from 4.25% to 7.85% per year of
which 3.00% is assumed due to inflation and the balance to merit or seniority.
The assumptions did not include post-retirement benefit increases. The City of
Lenoir has chosen not to set aside funds to pay benefits and administration costs.
These expenditures are paid as they come due.

4. Annual Pension Cost and Net Pension Obligation. The City's annual pension cost
and net pension obligation to the Separation Allowance for the current year are as

follows:

Annual required contribution $87,355
Interest on net pension obligation 17,168
Adjustment to annual
required

pension contribution (21,3586)
Annual pension .
cost $83,167
Employer Benefits Paid 98,372
Increase(decrease) in net pension obligation ($13,215)
Net pension obligation beginning of

fiscal year 343,168
Net pension obligation end of year $329,953

The following schedule contains trend information for fiscal years ending June 30, 2011,
2012 and 2013.

2011 2012 2013
Annual pension cost $ 89,088 $ 86467 $§ 83,157
Percentage of APC Contributed 110.35% 87.20% 115.89%
Net Pension Obligation $ 332,006 § 343,168 § 329,953
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Additional information as of the latest actuarial valuation follows:

Valuation Date 12/31/2012. Actuarial Assumptions:

Actuarial Cost Method Projected Unit Credit Investment Rate of Return 5.00%
Amortization Method Level % of pay closed Projected Salary Increase 4.25%-1.85%
Remaining Amortization 19 Years Includes Inflation at 3.00%

Asset Valuation Methed  Market Value Cost of Living Adj. N/A

Required supplementary information including a Schedule of Funding Progress and
Schedule of Employer Contributions is presented in the Required Supplementary
Information section immediately following these notes. A separate report is not issued.

¢. Supplemental Retirement Income Plan for Law Enforcement

1. Plan Description, The City contributes to the Supplemental Retirement Income
Plan (Plan), a defined contribution pensior: plan administered by the Depattment of
State Treasurer and a Boatd of Trustees. The Plan provides retirement benefits to law
enforcement officers employed by the City, Article S of G. S. Chapter 135 assigns
the authority to establish and amend benefit provisions to the North Carolina General
Assembly.

2. Funding Policy. Article 12E of G. S. Chapter 143 requires the City to contribute
each month an amount equal to five percent of each officer’s salary, and all amounts
contributed are vested immediately, Also, City employees may make voluntary
contributions to the Plan. Contributions for the year ended June 30, 2013 were
$166,492 which consisted of $100,560 from the City and $65,932 from employees.

d. ABC Board - Local Government Employees' Retirement System

1. Plan Description, The City of Lenoir ABC Board contributes to the statewide
Jocal Government Employees' Retirement System (LGERS), a cost sharing,
multiple-employer, defined benefit pension plan administered by the State of North
Carolina, LGERS provides retirement and disability benefits to plan members and
beneficiaries. Article 3 of G. S. Chapter 128 assigns authority to establish and amend
benefit provisions to the North Carolina General Assembly. The Local Government
Employees' Retirement System is included in the Comprehensive Annual Financial
Report (CAFR) for the State of North Carolina. The State's CAFR includes financial
staterents and required supplementary information for LLGERS. That report may be
obtained by writing to the Office of the State Controller, 1410 Mail Service Center,
Raleigh, North Carolina 27699. '

2. Funding Poliey. Plan members are requited to contribute six percent of their
annual covered salary. The ABC Board is required to contribute al'an actuarially
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determined rate. The ABC Board's current 1ate for employees not engaged in law
enforcement is 16.34% of annual covered payroll. The contribution requirements of
members and the ABC Board are established and may be amended by the North
Carolina General Assembly. The Boatd's contribution for the yeats ending June 30,
2011, 2012, and 2013 were $23,443, $22,798 and $26,743 respectively. The
contribution made or accrued by the ABC Board equaled the required contribution for
the period.

e. Deferred Compensation Plan - The City offers its employees a deferred
compensation plan created in accordance with Internal Revenue Code Section 457, The
Plan is administered by Public Employees Benefit Services Securities Corporation. The
Plan, available to all City employees, permits them to defer a portion of their salary until
future years. The deferred compensation is not available to employees until termination,
retirement, death or unforeseeable emergency, The plan assets arc not repotted in the
City's financial statements.

f. Tlexible Spending Plan - The City offers its employees a flexible spending plan
created in accordance with Internal Revenue Code Section 125. Employees are able to
have deducted from their salaties, pre-tax, a specified amount to be used for eligible
medical and dependent care expenses. The plan assets are held for the employees and are
reported in the City's financial statements in the govermmental funds.

g. Post-reticement Health Care Benefits - The City has adopted policies governing .
postretirement health care benefits for retirees. The subsidies vary depending upon the
years of service of the retiree. The City pays 50 percent of the health care premium for
employees who retire with 30 or more years of service with the retiree paying 50 percent.
The City pays 25 percent of the health care premium for employees who retire with 20 to
29 years of service with the retiree paying 75 percent. Employees who retire with at least
15 years of service arc allowed to remain on the City's health policy and pay 100 percent
of the premium, Retirees are allowed to have coverage for dependents and pay 100
percent of that premium. Additionally, at age 65 the retiree has the option to purchase a
Medicare supplement from the City's health care benefit provider at his expense with the
City ceasing to subsidize the premium. The City's regular health care benefit provider
underwrites the retiree's policies.

As of June 30, 2013, there were sixteen employees who had retired with 30 years of
service who were receiving the 50 percent-premium-coverage benefit and fouremployees
who had retired with sufficient years of service to receive the 25 percent-premium-
coverage benefits, The City finances the plan on a pay-as-you-go basis and for the fiscal
year ended June 30, 2013, the City recognized $71,732 of expenditures for retiree health
benefits or 0.82% of annual payroll. The current ARC rate is 0.94% of annual covered

payroll.
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Membership in the plan included the following at December 31, 2012, the date of the
latest actuarial valuation:

Public
General Safety
Employees Officers
Retirees receiving benefits 8 16
Active plan members 146 122
Total 154 138

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies ~ Post-employment expenditures
are made from the City’s General Fund, which is maintained on the modified
accrual basis of accounting. No funds are set aside to pay benefits and
administration costs. These expenditures are paid as they become due.

2. Annual OPEB Cost and Net OPEB Obligation - The City’s annual OPEB cost
(expense) is calculated based on the annual required contribution of the employer
(ARC), an amount actuatially determined in accordance with the parameters of
GASB Statement 45, The ARC represents a level of funding that, if paid on an
ongoing basis is projected to cover normal cost each year and amortize any
unfunded actuarial liabilities (or funding excess) over a period not to exceed thirty
years. The following table shows the components of the City’s annual OPEB cost
for the year, the amount actually contributed to the plan, and changes in the City’s
net OPEB obligation for the healthcare benefits:

Annual Required Confribution $ 81,890
Interest on Net OPEB Obligation 15,383
Adjustment to Annual Required (15,130)
Confribution —
Annual OPEB Cost $2,143
Contributions Made _ {21,132
Increase in Net OPEB Obligation ) 10,411
Net OPEB Liability, July 1, 2012 $395,952
Net OPEB Liability, June 30, 2013 $406,363

The City’s annual OPEB cost, the percentage of annual OPEB cost contributed to
the plan, and the net OPEB obligation are as follows:
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Percentage of
Annual OPEB

Fiscal Yemr  Annual OPEB Cost Net OPEB
Ended Cost Contributed Liability
2013 $82,143 87.3% $406,363
2012 $111,670 74.8% $395,952
2011 $209,836 40.76% $367,821
2010 379,417 125.16% $243,508
2009 $164,091 55.63% $164,091

As of December 31, 2011, the most recent actuarial valuation date, the plan was
not funded. The actnarial accrued liability for benefits, and thus, the unfunded
actuarial accrued liability (UAAL) was $1,126,070. The covered payroll (annual
payroll of active cmployees covered by the plan) was $8,754,716. Actuarial
valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of the value of reported amounts
and assumptions about the probability of occurrence of events far into the future.
Examples include assumptions about future employment, mortality, and
healthcare trends. Amounts determined regarding the finded status of the plan
and the annual required contributions of the employer are subject to continual
revision as actual results are compared with past expectations and new estimates
are made about the future. The schedule of funding progress, presented as
required supplementary jnformation following the notes to the financial
statements, presents multiyear trend information about whether the actuarial value
of plan assets is increasing or decreasing over time relative to the actuarial
accrued liabilities for benefits.

3, Actuarial Methods and Assumptions — Projections of benefits for financial
reporting purposes are based on the substantive plan (the plan as understood by
the employer and the plan members) and include the types of benefits provided at
the time of each valuation and the historical pattern of sharing of benefit costs
between the employer and plan members at that point. The actuarial methods and
assumptions used include techniques that are designed to reduce the effects of
short-term volatility in actuarial accrued liabilities and the actuarial value of
assets, consistent with the long-term perspective of the calculations.

Tn-the December 31, 2011 actuarial valuation, the projected unit credit actuarial
cost method was used. The actuarial assumptions included a 4% investment rate
of return (net of administrative expenses), which is the expected long-term
investment refurns on the employer’s own investments calculated based on the
funded level of the plan at the valuation date, and an annual medical cost trend
increase of 9.5 % to 5%. The UAAL is being amortized as a level dollar
percentage of projected payroll on an open basis. The remaining amortization
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period at December 31, 2011 was 30 years. Assumed inflation rate of 3.00% was

also used.

The following schedule contains the required supplementary information
including a Schedule of Funding Progress and Schedule of Employer
Contributions. A separate report is not issued.

Actuarial Accrued
Actuarial Liability (AAL) Unfunded UAAL as a %
Actuarial Value of Projected Unit AAL Funded of Covered
Valuation Assets Credit (UAAL) Ratio Covered Payroll
Date (2} (b (b-a) {a:b)  Payroll {b-a:¢)
12/31/2011 $0 $1,126,070 $1,126,070 0% $8,754,716 12.9%
12/31/2008 $0 $1,717,145 $1,717,145 0% $8,514,138  20.25%
Year Ended Annual Required Percentage
Tune 30 Contribution Contributed
2013 $81,890 87.6%
2012 $111,670 74.8%
2011 $209,836 40.76%
2010 $79.417 125.16%
2009 $164,091 55.63%

Notes to the Required Schedules:

The information presented in the required supplementary schedule for the year ended 2011
was determined as part of the actuarial valuations at the dates indicated. Additional information

as of the latest valuation follows:
Valuation Date
Actuarial Cost Method

Amortization Method

Remaining Amortization Period

Asset Valuation Method
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City of Lenoir, North Carolina
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended June 30, 2013

Actuarial Assumptions:

Investment Rate of Return 4.0%
Includes Inflation at 3.00%
Medical Cost Trend Rate 9.5%— 5.0%
Yéar of Ultimate Trend Rate 2018

The information presented for the years ending June 30, 2010, 2011 & 2013 was
determined by using the alternative measurement method.

2. Other Employment Benefits - The City provides death benefits to law enforcement
officers through the Death Benefit Plan for members of LGERS, The beneficiaries of those
employees who die in active service after one year of contributing membership m the
System, or who die within 180 days after retirement or termination of service and have at
least one year of contributing membership service in the System at the time of death are
eligible for death benefits. Lump sum death benefit payments to beneliciaries are equal to
the employee’s 12 highest months® salary in a row during the 24 months prior to the
employee’s death, but the benefit may not exceed $20,000. All death benefit payments are
made from the Death Benefit Plan. The City has no liability beyond the payment of monthly
contributions, The contributions to the Death Benefit Plan cannot be separated between the
post-employment benefit amount and the other benefit amount. The City considers these
confributions to be immaterial.

3. Payables — Payables and accrued liabilities at June 30, 2013 were as follows at the
government-wide level:

Vendors Benefits Total
Governtitental Activities: $ 242,683 $ 242,683
Business-type activities: $ 201,145 § 201,145

4. Deferred Inflows of Resources — Deferred inflows of resources at year-end is comprised
of the following:
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Unavailable Unearned

Taxes receivable (General Fund) $ 325251 % -
Membership and fees paid in advance (General Fund) 3,431 3,431
Total $ 328,682 § 3,431

5, Risk Management - The City is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of,
damage to, and destruction of assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural
disasters. The City participates in two self-funded risk-financing pools administered by the
North Carolina League of Municipalities. Thtough these pools, the City obtains general
liability and auto liability coverage of at least $2 million per occurrence, property coverage
up to the total insurance values, and worker's compensation coverage up to the statutory
limits.

The pools are reinsured through commercial companies for single oceurrence claims
agalnst general liability, auto liability and property in excess of $500,000, and $300,000
up to statutory limits for workers' compensation, The property liability pool has an
aggregate limit for the total property losses in a single year, with the reinsurance limit
based upon a percentage of the -total insurance values. The City's health insurance
provides unlimited lifetime coverage for in network and $1 miliion for out of network.
The City does not carry flood insurance.

The City carries commercial coverage for all other risks of loss. There have been no
significant reductions in insurance coverage in the prior year, and settled claims have not
exceeded coverage in any of the past three fiscal years.

Tn accordance with G.S. 159-29, the City’s employees that have access top $100 or more
at any given time of the City’s funds are performance bonded through a commercial
surety bond. The finance officer and tax collector are each individually bonded for
$100,000 each.

The Lenoir ABC Board is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of,
damage to, and destruction of assels; errors and omission; injuries to employees; and
natural disasters. The Board has propetty general liability; auto liability, workmen's
compensation and employees® health coverage. The Board also has liquor legal  liability
coverage. There have been no significant reductions in coverage from the prior year and
settled claims have not exceeded coverage in any of the past three years. -
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Notes to the Financial Statements
IFor the Year Ended June 30, 2013

6. Long-Term Obligations
“a. Drinking Water Revolving Loan

The City of Lenoir has received a loan to replace the Whitnel Pump Station. As of June
30, 2013 the loan balance was $2,530,692 at an interest rate of 2.485% for a term of 20
years.

b. Water Pollution Control Revolving Loan

On September 30, 1998 the City of Lenoir assumed a loan offered from the Water
Pollution Control Revolving Loan Fund identified as Federal Project #CS370393-03

and State Project #1-SRE-T-97-0082. The project was for the upgrade and expansion of
the Lower Creek Wastewater Treatment Plant from 4.08 MGD to 6.0 MGD. As of June
30, 2013 the total loan balance was $242,993 with an interest rate of 2.6% for a term of
fifteen (15) years.

¢, Drinking Water Revolving Loan
The City of Lenoir has received a loan for raw water intake improvements. As of June
30, 2013 the loan balance was $3,470,078 at an interest rate of 2.22% for a term of 20
years. :

d. Installment Purchase Contracts
The City has entered into installment purchase contracts to finance the purchase of

equipment and installation/purchase of utility lines, A summary of installment purchase
contracts follows:
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DESCRIPTION COST DATE TERM RATE EREQUENCY
Water and WW plant $ 8,360,000  Refunded  17.5 years 3.20% $302,907

residuals management 1212412003 seni-annual

refinancing annexation lines
Water & Sewer lines -

Town of Hudson § 1,206,484  Refunded 15 years 3.97% $67,465

11/12/2003 semi-anunal

Utility Line Extension -

Phase I 2001 Annexation $ 3,237,05'3 6-27-02 15 years 4.29% $144,608 semi-anaual
Utility Line Extension -

Phase 11 2001 Annexation 3 2,658,000 12/2/02 15 years 4.09% - $119,415 semi-anuual
Utility Line Extension -

Phase ITF 2001 Annexation $ 1,550,000 6/19/03 |5 years 3.91% $68,780 semi-amual
Water Lines purchased from non-interest

Caldwell Connty $ 373490  12/13/2005 9 years bearing $37,349 annually
Rhodhiss Water Treatment Plant

renovations and wtility line

construction $ 2,700,000 6/30/2005 15 years 3.81% $92,544 semi-annual
Whitnel Pump Station $2,977,285 11/1/2010 20 years 2.485% $219,000 semi-annual
Streetscape, Recreation, $1,410,000
& Downftown 8/26/2006 15 years 3.81% $88,634 semi-annual
Utility Line Projects $1,190,000
Capital Equipment 8673,897  11/16/2006 7 years 3.70% $2,740 quartetly
Capital Equipment $526,000 1/6/2011 4 years 2.16% $34,404 quarterly
Capitai Equipment $355,000 . 171972012 4 years 1.90% $23,083 quarterly
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The following summarizes the annual requirements to amortize all long-term debt
outstanding (excluding compensated absences and the lability for the separation _
allowance for law enforcement officers):

Governmental Activities Business-Type Activitics

Principal Interest Principal Interest
Installment Contracts
2014 362,240 33,760 1,535,263 217,984
2015 278,352 25,133 1,487,108 160,650
2016 131,699 19,137 862,251 111,517
2017 85,859 15,538 1,019,921 80,266
2018 85,859 12,267 508,546 38,402
20192023 257,580 17,174 647,000 36,965
Total 1,201,589 123,009 6,060,089 645,784
Section 108 Loan
2014 102,000 13,854 - -
2015 108,000 8,540 - -
2016 114,000 2,901 - -
Total 324,000 25,295 - -
Revolving Loans
2014 - - 574,492 142,956
2015 - - 331,500 132,050
2016 - - 331,500 124,304
2017 : - - 331,500 116,558
2018 - - 331,499 108,812
2019-2023 1,657,500 427,862
2024-2028 1,657,500 234,204
2029-2033 - - 1,028,272 52,021
Total - - 6,243,763 1,338,767
Total Debt Due $ 1,525,589 % 148,304  $ 12,303,852 & 1,984,551
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The following is a sununary of changes in long-term obligations for the year-ended June

30,2013

Governmental activities:
Installment purchase contracts
Compensated absences
Section 108 Loan

Pension obligation

Post employment benefits

Total governmentsil activities

Business-type activities:
Installment purchase contracts
Revolving loan

Compensated absences

Post employment benefits

Total business-type activities

Balance Balance Portion of
July 1, June 30, Long-term
2012 Additions Payments 2013 Liabilities

$ 1,731,513 $(529924) $ 1,201,589 § 362,240
517,705 (18,045) 499,660 208,000
420,000 {96,000) 324,000 102,000
343,168 (13,215) 329,953 -
348,438 9,161 357,599 -

$ 3,360,824 % 9,061 § (657,184) $ 2,712,801 $ 762,240
Current

Balance Balance Portion of
July 1, June 34, Long-term
2012 Additions Payments 2013 Liabilities

$ 7,541,918 § (1,481,829) § 6,060,089 $ 1,535,263
6,818,254 (574.491) 6,243,763 574,492
111,390 1,350 112,740 72,000

47,514 1,250 48,764
$ 14519076 § 2,600 § (2,056,320) $ 12465356 $ 2,181,755

For the governmental activities compensated absences are liquidated by the General

Fund, and for the business-type activities compensated absences are liquidated by the
Water and Sewer Fund.

At June 30, 2013, the City of Lenoir had a legal debt margin of $112,812,353.
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e, Interfund Activity

1. Transfers in (out) for the year ended June 30, 2013 are summarized below:

Transfer In
Special
General Revenue Nonmajor
Tund Fund Governmental Total
Transfer Out
General Fund $ - 3 120,000 § 120,000
Total transfers out 3 - % - % 120,000 3 120,000

Transfers from the general fund to the nonmajor governmental fund were matching funds
used primarily to suppott the operations of the funds.

2. Interfund receivables and payables at June 30, 2013 are composed as follows:

Receivables Payables
General Fond $252,115
Special Revenue Fund $121,536
Non-Major Governmental Funds $130,579

The outstanding balances between funds result mainly from working capital loans made
to other fund are to be reimbursed in the subsequent years.

{f. Tund Balance

The following schedule provides management and citizens with information on the
portion of General fund balance that is available for approptiation:

Total fund balance — General Fund 85,514,342
T ess:
Prepaid Items . 6,827
Stabilization by State Statute 1,495,197
Substance Control 34,468
Public Safety 297.927
Remaining Fund Balance $3,679,923
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IV. JOINT VENTURES

The City, in conjunction with the City of Morganton, County of Caldwell, and County of
Burke participates in a regional airport known as the Foothills Regional Airport Authority
(Airport Authority). The Airport Authority was established by act of the North Carolina
General Assembly, Session Law 2000-9, House Bill 1517, and ratified June 14, 2000.
The Airport Authority is successor in interest to the former Morganton-Lenoir Airport
Authority. BEach participating entity appoints two members to the eight-member board.
The Ajrport Authority is a joint venture ostablished to facilitate economic expaunsion
within the area and improve the quality of life for City citizens. The airport has been in
existence since 1945, The City is not responsible for financing any deficits of the Airport
Authority nor is it entitled to any surpluses. The City does not approve the budget of the
Airport Authority. The City occasionally contributes to the Airport Awuthority buf is not
bound to do so. The City contributed $27,466 to the Airport Authority during the year
ended June 30, 2013.

The participating entities do not have any equity interest in the joint venture, so no equity
interest has been reflected in the financial statements at Tune 30, 2013. Complete
financial statements for the Airport Authority can be obtained from the airporf's
administrative offices at P. O. Box 34438, Morganton, NC 28680.

V. JOINTLY GOVERNED ORGANIZATION

The City, in conjunction with four counties and twelve other municipalities established
the Western Piedmont Council of Governments (Council) in 1971, The patticipating
governments established the Council to coordinate various funding received from federal
and state agencics. Each participating government appoints one member to the Council's
governing board, The City paid approximately $132,209 for membership fees and
miscellaneous services to the Council during the year ended June 30, 2013.

VI, RELATED ORGANIZATIONS

The four-member board of the City of Lenoir Housing Authority (Housing Authority) 13
appointed by the mayor of the City of Lenoir. The City is accountable for the Housing
Authority because it appoints the governing board; however, the City is not financially
accountable for the Housing Authority. The City of Lenoir is also disclosed as a related
organization in the notes to the financial statements for the Housing Authority.

VII. SUMMARY DISCLOSURE OF SIGNIFICANT CONTINGENCIES AND
COMMITMENTS

A. TFederal and State Assisted Programs - The City has received proceeds from several
federal and State grants. Periodic audits of these grants are required and certain costs
may be questioned as not being appropriate expenditures under the grant.
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Management believes that any required refands will be immaterial. No provision has
been made in the accompanying statements for the refund of grant money.

VIII. Subsequent Events

Subsequent events have been evaluated through September 30, 2013, which is the
date the financial statcments were available to be issued.

TX. Change in Accounting Principles

The city implemented Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement
63, Financial Reporting of Deferred Outflows of Resources, Deferred Inflows of
Resources, and net Position, and Statement 63, ltems Previously reported as Assets
and Liabilities, in the fiscal year ending June 30 2013. In accordance with GASB
Statement 63, the Statemnent of Net Assets has been replace with the Statement of Net
Position. Items on the Statement of Net Position are now classified into Assets,
Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources and Net Position,
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Required Supplementary I nformation

This section contains the following additional information required by
generally accepted accounting principles:  Schedule of Funding
Progress for the Law Enforcement Officers’ Special Separation
Allowance, Schedule of Employer Contributions for the Law
Enforcement Officers’ Special Separation Allowance and Schedule of
Funding Progress and Employer Contributions for Other Post-
Employment Benefits ( OPEB).




City of Lenoir, North Carolina

Required Supplementary Information
Law Enforcement Officers’ Special Separation Allowance
Schedule of Funding Progress and Employer Gontributions

For the Year Ended June 30, 2013

Actuarial Accrued Payroll for Percentage
Actuarial Value of Llability (AAL) - Unfunded Funded Year Ending of Covered
Valuation Assets  Proj. Unit Gredit AAL (UAAL) Ratio on Val Date Payroll
Date {a) (b) (b-a) {a/b) (c) ({b-a)/c))
12/31/2012 $ - § B34999 § 834999 0.00% $§ 1,892,355 44,12%
243172011 $ - $ V746,570 § 746,570 0.00% % 2,039,207 36.61%
12/31/2010 3 - % 805420 § 805420 0.00% % 2,151,206 37.44%
12/31/2008 5 - § B84,789 $ 8B4.789 0.00% & 1,993,571 44.38%
1213172008 $ - § 769,785 § 769,785 0.00% $ 1,998,704 38.51%
12/31/2007 $ - % 708037 $§ 708037 0.00% $ 1,955,275 36.21%
42/31/2008 $ - % 687345 § 687345 0.00% $ 1,917,798 35.84%
12/31/2006 $ - $ 675027 & 675,027 0.00% $ 1,930,693 34.96%
12/31/2004 $ - 8§ 674,050 § 674,050 0.00% § 1,887,699 35.71%
12/31/2003 3 - § 560,999 $ 560,999 0.00% $§ 1,608,177 34.88%
Annual
Required Percentage
Contribution Contributed
6/30/2013 $ 98,372 110.32%
B30/2012 $ 89673 84.08%
61302011 $ 90,295 108.88%
6/30/2010 $ 75,825 148.28%
6/30/2008 $ 70,725 168.28%
673012008 $ 68,204 120.58%
B/30/2007 $ 69,292 105.64%
6/30/2006 $ 71,731 89.70%
6/30/2005 $ 64,728 89.02%
6/30/2004 $ 31819 50.35%

Notes fo the Required Schedules:

The information presented in the required supplementary schedules was determined as part of the actuarlal
valuations at the dates indicated. Additional information as of the latest actuarial valuation follows:

Valuation Date

Acluarial Cost Method

Amortization Method

Remaining Amortization

Period

Asset Valuation Method

1213172041
Projected Unit Credit

Level percent of pay closed

18 Years
Market Value

80

Actuarial Assumptions:
Investment Rate of Return
Projected Salary Increase
includes Inflation at

Cost of Living Adjustments

5.00%

4.25% - 7.85%
3.00%

N/A




City of Lenoir, North Carclina

Other Post - Employment Benefits (OPEE)

Required Supplementary Information

Schedule of Funding Progress and Employer Gontributions
For the Year Ended June 30, 2013

Actuarial Accrued Payroll for Percentage
Actuarial Value of Liability (AAL} -  Unfunded  Funded Year Ending of Covered
Valuation Assetls Proj. Unit Credit AAL (UAAL) Ratio on Val Date Payroll
Date {a) {h) (b-a) {a/b) {c) {(b-a)lc))
12/31/2011 % - 3 1,126,070 $ 1,126,070 0.00% 3% 8,754,716 12.86%
1213172008 & - 3 1,717,146 § 1,717,145 000% $ 8,614,138 20.17%

Schedule of Employer Contributions
For the Year Ended June 30, 2013

Annual
Required Percentage
Contribution Gonftributed
6/30/2013 % 81,800 * 87.60%
6/30/2012 § 111,670 74.80%
6/30/2011 § 209,836 * 40.76%
6/30/2040 % 79,417 * 125.16%
6/30/2009 § 164,091 55.63%

Notes to the Required Schedules:

The information presented in the required supplementary schedule for the year ended 2011 was determined as part
of the actuarial valuation at the dates indicated. Additional information as of the latest actuarial valuation follows:

Valuation Date

Actuarial Cost Method

Amortization Method

Remaining Amortization

Period

Asset Valuation Method

1213172011
Projected Unit Credit
Level percent of Pay, open

30 Years
Market Value

Actuarial Assumptions:

Investment Rate of Retuin  4.00%
Includes Inflation at 3.00%
Medical Cost Trend Rate 9.5-50%
Year of Ultimate Trend Rate 2018

* . The information presented for the years ended June 30, 2010, 2011 and 2013 was determined by using the
alternative measurement msthod.
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General Fund

The General Fund accounts for resources traditionally associated with
government that are not required legally or by sound financial
management to be accounted for in other funds.

This fund receives ad valorem 10X revenie, local option sales taxes,
federal- and state-shared revenues, licenses, permiits, and fees. The
major operating activities include general government, public safety,
public works, parks and recreation, and other governmental service
functions.




City of Lenoir, North Carolina

General Fund

Supplemental Balance Sheets
June 30, 2013

(Schedule 1)

2013
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 4,258,432
Taxes receivable (net) 325,251
Accounts receivable (net) 644,635
Other receivables 508,447
Prepaid items ‘ 6,827
Dute from other funds 252,115
Total assets 3 6,085,707
Liabilities:
Accounts payable 3 242,683
Deferred Inflow of Resources
Unavailable Property Taxes 325,251
Memberships Paid in Advance 3,431
Total deferred inflow of resources $ 328,682
Fund balances:
Non Spendable
Prepaid Items 6,827
Restricted
Stabilization by State Statute 1,495,197
Substance Control 34,468
Public Safety 297,927
Assigned
Land Development 468,178
Unassigned
Unassigned 3,211,745
Total fund balances 5,514,342
Total liabilitles, deferred inflows of resources
and fund balances $ 6,085,707
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~ General Fund

Supplemental Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in

Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended June 30, 2013

{Schedula 2, Page 1}

REVENUES:
Ad valorem taxes
Taxes - Net of discounts
Penalties and interest
Total
Diher taxes and licenses;
Local option sales fax
Privilege licenses
Motor vehicle tags
Gross receipts on rental vehicles
Total
Unrestricted intergovernmental revenues:
Utilities franchiss tax
Beer and wing {ax
Total
Restricted intergoyemmental revenues;
State Streat - Aid allocation
Conlributien from Caldwell County
Grants
Substance Centrol
Total
Permits and fees;
Public safety fees and charges
Public works fees
Pianning department fz¢s and charges
Total
Sates and services;
Bulk container service and sales
Solid waste fees
Cemetery lots and marker sales
Recreation department fres.
centers and parks
Recreation department fees-
rquatic/litness center
Concessions
Telephone collection feos
Fire line charges

2013
VARIANCE
POSITIVE

BUDGET ACTUAL (NEGATIVE)
$ 7218379 7,379,235 160,876
94,100 76,548 {17,552)
7312479 7.453,803 143,324
3,599,947 3,541,552 (58,395)
190,000 288,630 98,630
71,300 68,960 (2,540)
4,000 3,052 (948)
3,865,447 3,002,194 36,747
1,430,000 1,670,769 240,769
85,000 73,171 (11,529)
1,515,000 1,743,940 238,940
565,000 560,939 4,939
124,988 124,988 .
299,730 304,048 4318
38,000 25,150 (12,810)
1,027,718 1,024,165 (3.553)
203,000 178,953 (24,047)
20,000 19,484 (516)
6,000 2,300 (3,700)
229,000 200,737 (28,263)
1,000 3,544 2,544
610,000 627,002 17,602
115,000 63,339 (51,661)
£9,884 70,393 {18,991
119,750 120,844 1,094
2,000 8,476 1,476
12,060 6,757 - (5,243)
230,000 232,409 2,409
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Supplemental Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in

Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended June 30, 2013

{Schedule 2, Page 2)

REVENUES (Continued)
Sales and services {Continued)
Rentals
Vehicle naintenance contracts
Total

[nterest on investments

Miscellzneous:
Other
TFotal

Payment from Companent Unit:
City of Lenoir ABC Board
Law enforcement
Profit distribution
Total

Totel revenues

EXPENDITURES
General Government:
Administative:
Salaries and wages
Personnel benefits
Professional services
Felephone and postage
Utikities
Travel and training
Maintenance - building and equipment
Advertising and printing
Tax collection fees
Supplies
Contracted services
Dues and subseriptions
Insurance gnd bonds
Coniribution to Foothills Regional
Alrport
Econemic development
Capital improveinents and equipment
Other operating expenses
Reimbussement of adminlstrative
costs for Water Fund
Total Administrative

Building Maintenance:
Salaries and wages
Personme! benefils
Telephone and postage
Travel and training
Maintenance - bitilding and equipment
Supplies

2013
VARIANCE
POSITIVE
BUDGET ACTUAL (NEGATIVE)
$ 13,500 13,200 (300)
450,000 390,054 (59,946)
1,648,134 1.536,518 (111,616)
40,400 5431 (34,969)
113,300 250,034 145,734
113,300 259,034 143,734
7,500 3,801 (3,699)
200,000 209,829 9,820
207,500 213,630 6,130
15,958,978 16,341,452 38247
729,723 420,483 9,240
222,187 211,436 10,701
50,500 192,104 {121,504)
29,500 20,420 9,080
16,000 15,353 617
40,000 49,392 £9,392)
16,000 4,653 11,347
3,000 9,954 (1,954)
15,000 20870 5.970)
61,500 69,517 (8,017
113,500 134,301 (20,801
46,000 41,041 4,959
11,352 16,571 (5,219
56,060 27 466 28,534
304,069 243,068 61,001
61,000 47,534 13,466
109,449 81,307 27,642
(327,526) (326,572) {L254)
1,581,954 1,579,548 2,406
161,731 177,657 (15,926)
71,009 70,526 483
2,000 3,310 (1,310
500 91 409
32,000 16,930 15,070
5,000 4,125 875
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Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended June 30, 2013

{Schedule 2, Page 3)
2013
VARIANCE
POSITIVE
BUDGET ACTUAL (NEGATIVE)
EXPENDITURES (Continued)
General Governmens {Continued)
Building Maintenance (Continued)
Uniforms 2,600 1,993 607
Contracled services 500 3,380 {2,880
Insurance and bonds 3,000 6,778 1,222
Other aperating expenses 2,500 2,223 277
Reimbursement of administrative
costs for Water Fund (£2,000) (13,559 1,59%
Tote! Building Maintenance 273,840 273,414 426
Engineering:
Salaries and wages 109,641 109,636 5
Personnel benefils 37,518 37,038 480
Professional services 97,000 T, 426 25,574
Telephone and postage 5,060 4,143 857
Utilities 19,200 22,583 (3,383)
Maintenance - building and equipment 9,500 27,792 (18,292)
Travel and training 1,500 3,282 {1,782)
Supplies 2,500 6,056 (3,256)
Uniforms 650 869 (219)
Contracted services 157,730 156,021 1,709
Dues and subscriptions 1,100 219 181
Insurance and bonds 15,160 15,389 (289}
Other operating expenses 1,800 1,806 (5]
Reimbursement of administrative
costs for Water Fund £44,000) (42,710) (1,280}
Total Engineering 414,539 414,250 289
Cemetery:
Salaries and wages 27,226 27,227 1
Personnel benefits 14,334 11,252 42
Telephone and postage 1,600 2,325 (1,325)
Utilitles 12,000 4.678 7322
Maintenance - building and equipment 3,500 7,561 (4,061)
Supplies 6,060 2,234 3,766
Uniforms 40D - 400
Contracted services - 4,395 {4,395)
Purchase for resale 59,600 63,382 (4,382)
Insurance and hands 6,600 5,592 1,008
Cther operating expenses 2,000 138 1,862
Total Cemetery 129,060 128,424 T236
Vehicle Services:
Salaries and wages {13,636 112,849 787
Personnel benefits 51,124 53150 (2,026)
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Fund Balance - Budget and Actual

For the Year Ended June 3¢, 2013

{Schedule 2, Page 4)

EXPENDITURES (Continued)
General Government (Continued)
Vehicle Services (Continued)
Telephone and postags
Utilities
Maintenance - building and equipment
Travel and training
Drepartmental supplies
Unifonns
Contracted services
Capital improvements and equipmeni
Insurance and bonds
Other operating expenses
Reimbursement of administrative
costs for Water Fund
Total Vehicle Services
Total General Government

Public Safety:
Police:
Salaries and wages
Personnel benefits
Professional services
Telephone and postage
Utilities
Travel and iraining
Maintenance - building and equipment
Supplies
Uniforms
Contracted services
Insurance and bonds
Substance Control
Palice benefit
Capital improvements and equipment
DARE.
Explorer Post 246
Adopt-A-Cop
(rther operating expenses
Total Police

Fire:
Salaries and wages
Personnel benefits

2013
VARIANCE
POSITIVE
BUDGET ACTUAL (NEGATIVE) _ _
2,030 3,273 (1,243
16,650 11,507 5,143
17.000 48,277 (31,217
4,000° 6,252 (2,252)
60,000 74,369 {14,369)
3,000 3,863 (863)
2,000 2,705 (70%)
70,000 13,284 56,716
9,900 8,388 1,512
296,100 314,598 (18,498)
(90,0000 (98,414). 8414
555,440 554,101 1,339
2,954,833 2,950,137 4,696
2,685,466 2,593,134 92,332
1,031,974 993,179 38,795
5,000 791 4209
58,630 64,758 (6,128)
28,000 26,654 1,346
27,510 33,287 (6.7717)
222,248 105,711 (83,453)
51,800 62,116 (10,516
31,090 31,805 (715)
73,770 73,805 (125)
157,120 132,532 24,588
17,000 28,894 £11,894)
10,000 9205 795
117,000 149,419 (32,419)
6,000 2,278 3,722
2,000 633 1,367
5,000 8,152 (3,152)
15,850 27,584 (11,734)
4,545,458 4,504,227 1731
2,027,398 2,147,709 (120,311
865,863 55,312
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City of Lenoir, Nerth Carolina

Gencral Fund

Supplemental Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in

Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended June 30, 2013

(Schedule 2, Page 5)
2013
YVARIANCE
POSITIVE
BUDGET ACTUAL (NEGATIVE)
EXPENDITURES {(Continued)
Public Safety (Continued}
Fire {Continued)
Professional services 3 1,000 - $ 1,000
‘Telephone and postage 17,190 19,927 2,737
Utilities 36,782 38,741 {2,009)
Travel and §raining 19,500 15,668 3,832
Maintenance - building and equipment 59,030 96,758 2,242
Supplies 33,180 21,765 11,415
Uniforms 30,400 22,786 7614
Contracted services 54,500 24,819 29,681
Dues and subscriptions 5,000 3,567 1,433
Insurance aid bonds 98,650 83,285 15,365
Other operaling expenses 15,703 12,034 3,669
Total Fire 3,304,166 3,267,660 6,506
Total Public Safely 7,849,624 7,841,887 7,737
Transpostation:
Streets:
Salarjes and wages 400,726 372,509 28217
Personnel benefits 162,526 145,733 16,793
Professional services 10,000 21,8%0 (11,890)
Telephone and postage 2,000 2,943 (943)
Utilities 154,000 343,904 (9.904)
Travel and training 1,500 619 8381
Maintenance - buijlding and equipment 141,000 161,998 (50,998}
Street repairs and niaintenance 542,000 483,629 108,371
Supplies 8,000 22,363 {14,363)
Street signs and pavement marking 65,000 36,961 28,039
Uniformts 6,950 3,622 3,328
Capital improvetents and equipment 75,188 {75,188)
Tnsurance and bonds 34,559 31473 3,086
Reimbursement of administrative
costs for Water Fund {45,000) {22,457) {22,543)
Orher operating expenses - 6,000 2882 3,118
Total Transporiation 1,739,261 1,733,257 6,004
Environmental Protection:
Sanitation:
Salaries and wages 321,674 296,223 25451
Personne! benefits 134,752 124,736 10,016
Telephone end posiage 8,000 10,780 (2,780}
Travel and training 2,000 - 2,000
Maintenance - building and equipment 186,000 176,365 9,635
Supplies A 2,500 1,919 581
Advertising and printing 1,000 3,257 (2,257}
Insurarco and bonds 28,000 23,723 4,277
Uniforms 5,000 3,677 1,323
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City of Lenoir, Nerth Carolina

General Fund

Supplemental Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes i

Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended June 30, 2013

(Schedule 2, Page 6)

EXPENDITURES (Continued)
Envirenmental Protection (Continued)
Sonitation (Continued)

Purchases for resale

Tipping fees

Recycling services

Capitel Improvements

Other operating expenses

Tota! Environmental Protection

Beonomic and Physical Development:
Downtown District:
Salaries and wages
Personne! benelits
Professional services
Telephone and postage
Trave! and training
Maintenance - equipiment and stregtscape
Advertising and printing
Departmental supplies
Contracted services
Evenls and promotions
Fagade incentive grants
Ducs and subscriptions
Qther operaling expenses
Total Dowitown District

Planning:
Salaries and wages
Personnel benefits
Professional serviess
Contracted services
Telephons and postage
Travel and training
Maintenance - equipment
Advertising and printing
Supplies
Pues and subscriptions
Insurance and bonds
Capital improvements and equipment
Building demolition
Other operating expenses
Reimburseiment for administrative
costs for Water Fund
Total Planning

Total Economic ant Physical
Development

2013
VARIANCE
POSITIVE
BUDGET __ ACTUAL (NEGATIVE)
6200 $ 5,600 600
63,000 85,760 (22,760)
25,000 21,043 1,857
. 27,775 (27,775}
2,700 4,181 (1481)
785,826 785,039 787
70,259 69,970 289
24,928 25,123 (195)
2,000 2,228 (228}
2,700 3,131 (431)
4,500 1,823 2677
4,000 5,850 {1,8503
5,600 6,527 (1,521
2,800 3,079 270}
12,000 21,558 (9,55%)
4,500 2,337 2,163
75,000 26,625 (1,625)
2,500 799 1,710
18,800 11,443 7,357
178,996 150,434 {1,488)
201,596 192,826 8,770
74,297 60,833 13,464
19,000 19,354 (20,35%)
14,500 31,200 {16,700)
4,800 5,199 (399)
5,000 3,454 {,546
5,500 2,643 2,657
4,000 1,634 2316
9,322 4,648 4,67
2,500 425 2,075
13,700 11,608 2,092
28,500 22,553 5,047
. 6,465 (6.465)
1,500 633 867
41,898), (2770 874
342,317 340,953 1,364
521313 521,437 @
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City of Lenvir, Nerth Carolina

Genera) Fund

Supplemental Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in

Fund Balance - Budget and Actual

For the Year Ended June 30, 2013

(Schedule 2, Page 7)

EXPENDITURES (Continued)
Cultura and Recreation:
Recreation Centers and Parks:
Salaries and wages
Personnel benefils
Professional services
Basketball league
Softball & baseball leagues
Miscellancous Jeagues and programs
Harambee Festival
Telephone and postage
Utilities
Travel and training
{nsurance and bonds
Capital improvements and equipment
Maintenance - building and equipment
Supplies
Dugs and subscriptions
Advertising and printing
Uniforms
Contracted services
Concessions and purehases for resale
Other operating expensas
Total Recreation Centers and Parks

Aquatic and Fitness Center:
Salaries and wages
Personnel benefils
Miscellaneous leagues and programs
‘Telephone and postage
Utilitles
Trave} and training
Maintenance - building and equipment
Supplies
Uniforms
Advertising and printing
Contracted services
Dues and Subscriptions
Cornicessions and purchases for resale
Tnsurance and bonds
(ther operating expenses
Total Aquatic and Filness Center

Landscaping:
Salaries and wages
Personnel benefits
Telephone and postage
Utilities
Travel and iraining
Maintenance - buflding and equipment
Supplies

2013
VARIANCE
POSITIVE
BUDGET ACTUAL (NIGATIVE)
$ 402,826 433,352 {30,526)
159,148 148,175 10,973
1,000 420 580
9,500 6,969 2,531
£0,000 9,751 243
52,826 47944 4,882
9,500 14,043 {4,543)
13,982 9,867 4115
79,000 95,065 (16,065)
7,800 5,884 1,916
13,800 30,950 2,850
12,000 10,418 1,982
98,000 89,370 8,630
47420 17,199 10,221
250 80 170
5,500 517 @17
1.812 613 1,199
24,085 23,681 404
10,000 7,108 2,892
1,955 3,003 4962
986,414 979,615 6799
260,234 251,361 3,673
81,031 75,146 5,885
500 - 500
4,050 8,194 {4,144
69,500 72,397 (2,897
3,076 5,580 (2,504)
20,500 23,062 (2,562)
41,026 48,306 {7,280)
1,238 628 610
6,342 1,287 4,455
12,825 14,466 (1,641
500 320 180
6,500 4,671 1,829
7,800 6,508 1,192
2012 2,333 (321)
517,134 515,159 1,975
124,115 131,729 (7.614)
54,153 55,595 (1,443)
2,000 2253 ¢253)
4,000 1,451 2,549
2,000 67 1,933
36,000 40,843 (4,843)
30,000 35,597 (5,597
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City of Lenoir, North Carolina

General Fund

Supplemental Schedute of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in

Tund Balance - Budget and Actual

For the Year Ended Junie 30, 2013

(Schedule 2, Page 8)

EXPENDITURES (Continued)
Culture and Recreation (Continued)
Landscaping (Continued)
Uniforms
Contracted services
Capital improvements and equipment
Insurance and bonds
Qther operating expenses
Tatal Landscaping

Total Culture and Recreation

Debt Service:
Principal
Interest
Total Debt Service

Total Expenditures

REVENUES OVER/(UNDER)
EXPONDITURES

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
(USES):
Appropriated fund balance
Proceeds from sale of capital assels
Transfers out:
To Capital Projects Fund

Total ather financing soutces (uses)

REVENUES AND OTHER
SOURCES OVER EXPENDITURES
AND QTHER USES

FUAND BALANCE:
Beginning of year

End of year

2013
VARIANCE
POSITIVE
BUDGET ACTUAL (NEGATIVE)

$ 3,000 1,349 1,651
- 29,271 (29,271)

60,000 18,238 41,762

2,992 2,365 427

3,000 1,769 1,231

321,060 320,528 532

1,824,608 1,815,302 9,306

520,926 529,924 2

46,656 46,631 25

576,582 576,555 27

16,252,047 16,223,614 28,433

(293,080} 117,838 410,907
388,069 (388,069)

25000 134,295 109,295
(120,000) (120,000), -
293,069 14,295 (278,774)

5 - 132,133 132,193

5,182,209
5,514,342
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Special Revenue Fund

' The Special Revenue Fund accounls for specific revenues that are
legally restricted to expenditure for particular purposes.

The only fund so specified by the City is the Grants Program Fund to
account for grant revenues and related expenditures. Included are the
following projects: Governor’s Highway Safety Grant; Fit Conmunity
Grant; PARTF Grant; 2009, 2010, 2011 and 2012 CDBG Entitlement
Programs, and 2010, 2011, and 2012 Unifour HOME Consortium
Programs.




City of Lenoir, North Carolina

Special Revenue Fund
Supplemental Balance Sheets
June 30, 2013

(Schedule 3)

2013

~ Assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ -
Total assets $

Liabilities and fund balances
Liabilities:
Accounts payable 2,750
Due to other funds 121,536

Total liabilities 124,286

Tund balances:
Unassigned , (124,286)

Total fund balances (124,286)

Total liabilities and fund balances 3 -
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City of Lenoir, North Carolina

Speeial Revenue Fund

Supplemental Schedule of Revenues and Expenditures Compared with
Authorizations From Inception and for (he Year Ended Juane 30, 2013
(Schedule 4, Page 1)

Aclual
Variance
Projest Prior Current Total Positive
Authorization Years Year To Date (Negative)
GOVERNOR'S HIGHWAY SAFETY GRANT:
Revenues:
Tntergovernmental 10,000 3,166 21,350 24,516 14,516
Interest camed on investitents - i - i 1
Total revenues 10,000 3,167 21,35¢ 24,517 14,517
Expendilures:
Departmentat Supplies 3,000 3,198 2,438 5,636 (2,636)
Training 3,000 2,337 2,648 4,985 (1,985}
Capital equipment 4,000 3,139 12,891 16,030 (12,030}
Total expenditures 10,000 8,674 12,977 26,651 (16,651)
Expenditures (over) rovenues - {5,507) 3,373 (2,134) (2,134)
FIT COMMUNITY GRANT:
Revenues:
Intergovernmental 65,000 55,799 - 55,799 (9,201
Expenditures:
Dept Supplies 125,000 123,725 - 123,725 1,275
Total expenditures 125,000 123,725 - 123,725 1,275
Expenditores {over) revenues (60,000) {67,926) - (67,926) (7,926}
PARTE GRANT
Revenues:
Tntergovemnmental 175,000 54,271 34,034 88,305 (86,698)
Expenditures:
Dept Supplies 100,000 45,075 - 45,075 54,925
Contract Services 50,000 - - - 50,000
Capilal Expenditures 200,000 100,083 71,993 172,076 27,924
Total expenditures 350,000 145,158 71,993 217,151 132,849
Expenditures (over) revernies {175,000) {90,887} {37,959 {128,846) 46,154
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City of Lenoir, North Cavolina

Special Revenue Fund
Supplemental Schedule of Revenues and Expenditures Compnred with
Authorizations Erom Inception and for the Year Ended June 30, 2013

(Schedule 4, Page 2)
Actual ~
Variance
Projest Prior Current Total Paositive
Authorization Years Year To Date (Negative)
2009 COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT
BLOCK GRANT:
Revenues:
Intergovenunental 186,143 163,683 163,683 (22,460}
Expenditures:
Debt principal . 117,297 84,300 - 84,300 32,697
Debi interest - 12,938 - 12,938 (12,938)
Sidewalk Project 39,522 17,062 - 17,062 22,460
Administration .. 29,324 33324 . .t 33,324 {4,000
Total expenditues 186,143 147,624 . - 141,624# 38,519
Expenditures (over) revenues - 16,059 - 16,05% 16,059
2010 COMMUNITY DEVELOPRMENT
BLOCK GRANT:
Revenues:
Intergovemmental 131,687 149,621 31,104 180,725 49,038
Expenditures:
Debt principal 105,350 - .- - 105,350
Sidewalk Project - 22,460 - 22,460 {22.460)
Administration 26,337 31,653 - 31,653 (5,316)
Toial expenditures 131,687 54,113 - 54,113 77,574
Expenditures (over) revenues . - 95,508 31,104 126,612 126,612
2011 COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT
BLOCK GRANT:
Revenuss;
Intergovernmental 131,690 26,338 §3,740 110,078 (21,612)
Expenditures:
Debt principal 105,352 92,000 - 92,000 13,352
Debt jnterest - 23,567 - 23,567 (23,567)
Administration 26,338 26,338 - 26,338 -
Total expenditures 131,690 141,905 - 141,905 (10,215)
Expenditures (over) revenues - (115,567) 83,740 (31,821 (31,827)
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City of Lenoir, North Carolina

Special Revenue Fund

Supplemental Schedule of Revenues and Expenditures Compared with
Authorizations From Inception and for the Year Ended June 30, 2013

{Schedule 4, Page 3)

2012 COMMUNITY DEVELOTPMENT
BLOCK GRANT:
Revenugs:
Tatergovernimental

Bxpenditures:
Debt prineipal
Debt interest
Admtinistration
Total expenditures

Expendilures (over) revenues

2010 UNIFOUR HOME CONSORTIUM:
Revenues:
Intergovemmental
Program income
Total revenue

Expenditures:
Downpayment assistancs
Program Income
CHDO
Administration
Multi-family Iousing

Total expenditures

Expenditures (over) revenues

Actual
Variance
Project Prior Current Total Positive
Authorization Years Year To Date (Negative)
147,527 - 29,050 29,050 (118477)
148,477 - 96,000 96,000 2477
- - 18,344 18,844 {13,844)
29,050 - 29.050 29,050 -
147,527 - 143,894 143,894 3,633
- - {114,844) {114,844) (114,844)
[,177,272 1,096,409 58,863 1,155,272 (22,000)
150,000 99,725 - 99,72% (50,275)
1,327,272 1,196,134 58,863 1,254,957 {72,275)
478,004 482,504 - 482,504 (4,500)
156,000 64,652 - 64,652 £5,348
176,591 117,728 58,863 176,591 -
117,727 126,300 - 126,300 (8,573
404,950 404,950 - 404,950 -
1,327,272 1,106,134, .. 58,803 1,254,997 72,275
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City of Lenoir, North Carolina

Special Revenue Fund

Supplemental Schedule of Revenues and Expenditures Compaved with
Anthorizations From Inception and for the Year Ended June 30,2013

{Schedule 4, Page 4)

2011 UNTFOUR ITOME CONSORTIUM:
Revenues:
Intergovernmental
Program income
Total revenue

Expenditures:
Downpayment assistance
Progrwm Income
CHDO
Administration
Multi-family housing

Total expenditures

Expenditures (over) revenues

2012 UNIPOUR HOME CONSORTIUM;
Revenues:
Intergovernmental
Progrant income
Total revenus

Expenditures:
Dowapayment assistance
Program Income
CHDO
Adninisiration
Multi-family houvsing

Total expenditures

Expenditures {over) revenues

Expenditures (over) revenues - alt grants

Other financing sousces:
Transfers to General Fund

Expendituzes (over) revenues - all graals

FUND BALANCE:
Beginning of year

End of year

Actual
Variance
Project Prior Current Total Positive

Authorization Years Year To Date (MNegative)
1,036,727 522,469 386,531 908,940 (127,787)

100,000 132,739 - 132,739 32,739
1,136,727 655,148 386,531 §,041,679 {95,048)

394,545 324,737 35,808 360,545 34,000
100,000 122,239 - 122,239 (22,239}

155,510 - 27,723 27,723 127,787
103,672 145,172 3,000 148,172 (44,500

383,000 63,000 320,000 383,000 -

1,136,727 655,148 386,531 1041679 95,048
824,401 - 168,279 168,279 {656,122

150,000 - 207,353 207,353 57,353
974,401 - 375,632 375,632 (598,7693

450,300 - 112,839 112,839 337,461
150,000 - 151,603 151,603 (1,603)

123,601 - B - 123,661
82,440 - 105,440 105,440 (23,000)

168,000 - - - 168,000

974,401 - 369,882 369,882 604,519

- - 5,730 5,750 5,750

(2350000 $ (1683200 & (28,836 § (191156} § 37844

215,000 20,598 - 20,598 (214,402

$ L% (417 (28.836) § (176,558) § (176,558)
(95,450
$ (124,286)
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Nonmajor Governmental Funds

The Nommajor Governmental Funds include the Capital Projects Fund
and the Permanent Fund.




City of Lenoir, North Carolina

Combining Balance Sheet
Nonmajor Governmental Funds

June 30,2013
(Schedule 5)
Capital Tetal Nonmajor
Project Permanent Governmental
Fund Fund frunds
Assets '
Cash and cash equivalents-resiricted - 255,509 255,509
Other receivables 32,048 805 32,853
Total assets 3 12,048 $ 256,314 % 288,362
Liabilitics and fund balances
Liabilities:
Accounts payable 3 5727 % - 3 5,727
Due to other funds 130,579 - 130,579
Total labilities 136,306 - 136,306
Fund balances:
Restricted Cementary Care - 256,314 256,314
Unassigned (104,258) ) (104,258)
Total fund balances (104,258) 256,314 152,056
Tofal liabilities and fund balances b} 32,048  § 256,314 § 288,362
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City of Lenoir, North Carolina

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances
Nonmajor Governmental Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 2013

(Schedule 6)
Capital Total Nonmajor
Project Permanent Governmental
Fund Fund Funds
Revenues
Restricted intergoverninental revenues $ 5714 % - 8 5,714
Invesiment earhings - 1,133 1,133
Miscellaneous 1,925 - 1,925
Total revenues 7,639 1,133 8,772
Expenditures
Current;
Capital projects 10,561 - 10,561
Total expenditures 10,561 - 13,561
Excess (deficiency) of revenunes
over (under) expendifures (2,922) 1,133 {1,789)
Other financing sources (uses) _
From General Fund 120,000 - 120,000
Total other financing sources {uses) 120,000 - 120,000
Net change in fund balances 117,078 1,133 118,211
Fund balance - beginning (221,336) 255,181 33,845
Tund halance - ending $ (i04,258) § 256,314 3§ 152,056
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General Capital Project Fund

The General Capital Project Fund accounts for financial resources to
be used for the acquisition and construction of major capital facilities
other than those financed by proprietary funds and frust Junds,
Projects are the Fairview Street Bridge, Downtown Streetscape and
Greenway.




City of Lenoir, North Carolina
Capital Project Fund

Supplemental Sehedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
Compared with Authorizations from Inception and for the Year Ended June 30,2013

{Schedule 7, Page 1)
Actual
Variance
Praject Prior Current Total Positive
Authorization Years Year To Date (Pﬁé@)
STREETSCAPE PROJECT:
Revenues:
M€ nwnicipal agreement 650,000 599,215 - 569,215 (50,785}
Contributions from Outside Agency 25,060 25,800 25,800 300
Interest earned on investients - 71,822 - 71,322 71,822
Paver reveaue 44,760 154,637 1,925 156,562 111,862
Total revenue 719,700 851,474 1,925 £53,399 133,699
Bxpenditures:
Engineering 81,850 134,556 - 134,556 (52,706)
Paving Harper Ave 400,000 350,210 - 350,210 49,790
Construction 1,434,650 1,227,453 1,227,453 257,191
Public Square 169,760 446,679 189 446,868 {277,168)
Contingency 45,500 - - - 45,500
Tolal expenditures 2 181700 2,158,898 189 2,159,087 22,613
Expenditures {over) reveiues (1,462,000) (1,307,424} 1,736 (1,305,688) 156,312
GREENWAY PROJECT:
Revenues:
NC DOT grant 181,235 183,035 - 183,035 1,800
Clean water trust fund grant 40,000 40,000 - 40,000 -
Contributions from Outside Agency - 14,080 - 14,080 14,080
Interest eamed on invesiments - 2,164 - 2,164 2,164
Property cousribution 189,400 139,400 - 189,400 -
Tatal revenne 410,635 428,679 - 428,679 18,044
Expenditures:
Adminisirative 4,200 70,786 - 70,786 (66,586}
Property acquisition 632,492 229,885 - 229,885 402,607
Construction 544,486 860,948 1,270 862,218 {317,732)
Total expendilures 1,181,178 1,161,619 1,270 1,162,889 18,289
Expenditures {over) revenucs {770,543) (732,940) {1,270} {734,2100 36,333
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City of Leneir, North Cavolina

Capital Project Fund

Supplementat Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
Compared with Authorizations from Inception and for the Year Ended June 30, 2013

(Schedule 7, Page 2}

FAIRVIEW BRIDGE
Revenues:
NC Highway Grant
Expenditures;
Engineering
Construction
Total expenditures

Expenditores (over) revenues

Eaxpenditures (over) under revenues - all projects

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES(USES):
Financing issuances

Transter from Generat Fund
Total other financing sources

Revenues and other financing sources
over expenditures

Fund balance beginning of year

Fund balance end of year

Actual
Variance
Project Prior Current Totul Posilive
Authorization Years Year To Date {Negative)
720,000 F44,665 5,714 150,379 (569,621)
200,000 198,113 9,102 207,215 (7,215)
700,000 - 700,000
900,000 198,113 9,102 207,215 692,785
(180,0C0) {53,448} (3,388) {56,830} 123,164
(2,412,543} (2,093,812} (2.922) (2,096,734} 315,809
1,604,500 1,004,550 - 1,094,550 (509,950)
308,043 476,700 120,600 596,700 (211,343
2,412,543 1,571,250 120,600 1,691,250 (721,293)
$ - (522,562) 117,078 ) (405,484 §  {405,484)
301,226 (221,336}
§ (221,336)  § (104,238

9




Permanent Fund

The Permanent Fund accounts for Perpetual Cemefery Care.




City of Lenoir, North Carolina

Permancent Fund

Supplemental Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in

Fund Balance -Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended June 30, 2013

(Schedule §)
2013
VARIANCE
POSITIVE
BUDGET ACTUAL (NEGATIVE)
Revenues:
{nterest earned on investments 1,133 1,133
Toetal rovenues 1,133 1,133
Revenues over expenditures 1,133 1,133
Revenues and other sources under expanditures
and otler uses 1,133 1,133
Fund Balanes;
Beginning of year 255,181
Bnd of year 3 256,314
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Agency Fund

The Agency Fund accounts for payments received by the City of Lenoir
and remitted to CheckFree Pay on behalf of AT & T and Piedmont
Natural Gas and Flexcare payments.




City of Lenoir, North Carolina

Combining Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Assets and Liabilities

Ageney Funds
Tor Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2013
(Schedule 3)
July 1,2012 Additions Deductions June 30, 2013
ClieckFree Pay
Assels
Cash and cash equivalents 5 1,734 § 1,14¢ % 1,358 § 11,516
Total assets $ 1,734 8§ 11,140 § 1,358 § 11,516
Liabilities
Due to other funds $ 1,734 % 1,140 § 1,358 § 11,516
Total liabilities $ 1,734 § 1,140 8 1358 8 11,516
Fiex Spending
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 8 9,374 3 58964 3 67,593 § 745
Total assets $ 9374 § 58,964 $ 67593 $ 745
Liabilities
Due to other funds $ 9374 $§ . 58964 5 67,593 8 T45
Total {iabilities $ 9374 § 58,964 8 67,593 S 145
Total Al Agency Funds
Assels
Cash and cash equivalents 5 11,108 § 70,104 % 68951 $ 12,261
Total assels 3 11,108 § 70,104 § 68,951 % 12,261
Liabifities
Due to other funds 8 11,108 % 70,104 8 68,951 § 12,261
Total Habilities $ 11,108 § 70,104 § 63951 % 12,261
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Enterprise Fund

Enterprise Funds are used to account for operations thet are financed
and operated in @ manner similar to private business enterprises -
where the infent of the government’s council is that the costs of
providing goods or services 10 the general public on a continuing basis
be financed or recovered primarily through user charges, or where the
government’s council has decided that periodic determination of net
income is appropriate for accountabilify purposes.

The Water and Sewer Fund accounts for the City’s water [filtration and
distributioin and wastewater collection and treatment operations.




City of Lenoir, North Carolina

Enferprise Fund - Water and Sewer Fund

Supplemental Balance Sheets
June 30, 2013
{Schedule 10)

Assels
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable (net)
Inventorics
Restricted Cash and cash cquivalenls
Total current assets

Noncurrent assels
Capital assels, net
Total noncurrent assets
Total assets

Liabilifies
Cutrent liabilities
Accounts payable
Installment purchase contracts - curvent
Revolving loan payable - current
Customer deposits
Campensated absences payable
Total current linbilities

Noneurrent liabilities
Revolving loan payable
Installment purchase cantracts payable
GPEB Liability '
Compensated absences payable
Tolal noncurrent Habilities
Total liabilities

Net Position
Net investment in capital assets
Unrestricted Net Position
Total Met Position
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2013

§ 2,958,831
605,430

70,561

118,060
3,752,902

44,762,651
S LN/ X1
48,515,553

201,145
1,535,263
574,492
118,060
72,000

—_—

2,500,960

5,669,271
4,524,826
48,764
40,740
10,283,601
12,784,561

32,458,799
3,272,193
33570992




City of Lenoir, Noxth Carolina

Enterprise Fund - Water and Sewer Fund

Supplemental Schedule of Revenues - Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP)
For the Year Ended June 30, 2013

(Schedule 11, Part 1)

2013
VARIANCE
POSITIVE
BUDGET ACTUAL (NEGATIVE)
REVENURS:
Operating revenues: .
Water sales $ 5,146,406 $ 5,007,352 $ (139,054)
Wastewater treatment charges 2,539,714 2,498,344 (41,370)
Water and sewer {aps 40,000 20,532 {19,468)
Late payment/reconnect fees 235,000 251,370 16,370
Miscellaneous 53,000 78,318 25,318
Total operating revenues 8,014,120 7,855,916 (158,204)
Nonoperating revenues:
Interest on investments 10,000 2,476 (7,524)
TOTAL REVENUES $8,024,120 $7,858,392 ($165,728)
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City of Lenoir, North Carolina

Enterprise Fund - Watet aid Sewer Fund

Supplemental Schedute of Expenditures - Budget and Actual (Non-GAAF)

For the Year Ended Tune 30,2013

{Schedule [1, Part 1}, Page 1)

2013
VARIANCE
POSITIVE

PXPENDITURES: BUDGET ACTUAL [NEGATIVE) |
Rhodhiss Water Treatment Plant;

Salaries and wages 278,555 & 282461 % (3,906)

Personnel benefits 118,916 117,223 1,693

Telephone and postage 2,700 3,701 (1001

Utilities 263,000 344 583 (81,583)

Travel and training 1,900 1,551 349

Maintenance:

Building and grounds 10,000 7,076 2,924
Equipment 60,000 29,708 30,292
Motor equipment operation and mainten 7,000 7445 (445)
Depastmental supplies 15,000 18,633 (3,633)
Uniforms 3,000 2,985 15
Cantracted services 126,600 ., 69,863 36,137
State testing 17,000 4,386 12,614
Chemicals 209,667 163,312 46,355
Tnsurance and bonds 22.842 20,730 2,112
Utility service fees 105,147 109,305 (4,158)
Miscellaneous 8,700 6,017 2,083

Total Rhodhiss Water Treatment
Plant 1,249,427 1,189,579 59,848
Water Distribution:
Salaries and wages 305,655 410,565 (104,910
Personne! benefits 163,584 163,981 (397)
Professional services 55,000 18,917 36,083
Telephone and postage 35,000 51,7147 (13,747}
Utilities 55,000 32,310 22,690
TFravel and tiaining 1,500 981 519
Maeintenance:

Equipment 7,000 . 20,420 {13,420)
Distribution system 49,000 16,540 32,460
Motor equipment operation and mainten: 52,000 64,420 (12,420)
Departental supplies 95,000 54,809 40,191
Uniforms 4,000 2272 1,728
Insuranee and bonds 68,000 57,612 10,388
Contracted services $0,600 74,013 5,987
Service exiensions 5,000 - 5,000
Subdivision reimbursement B 120 (720)
Wiscellansous 5,500 3,128 1,772
Utility service fees 105,147 109,305 {4,158}
Economic development 25,000 10,657 14,343

Total Water Distribution 1,114,386 1,092,997 21,389
Water Resources
Salaries and wages 250,919 252,365 (1,446)
Personnel benefits 91,648 20,476 1,172
Professional services 78,000 97,038 (19,038)
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City of Lenair, Nerth Carolina

Enferprise Fund - Water and Sewer Fund

Supplementsl Sehedule of Expenditures - Budget and Actual (Non-GAATP)

For the Vear Ended Jung 30,2013

{Schedule | {, Part II, Page 2)

2013
VARIANCE
POSITIVE
EXPENDITURES (Comrinued) BUDGET ACTUAL (NEGATIVE)
Water Resources (Continued)
Travel and training % 2500 ¢ 2410 S 90
‘Telephone and posiage 3,500 327 226
Eguiptient maintenanes 36,000 14,666 24,334
Motor equipment oparation and mainten 15,400 20,383 (4,983)
Departmeital supplies 5,000 4,858 142
Uniforms 1,200 1,419 (219
Contracted services 30,081 1,058 29,923
Insurance end bonds 930 944 6
Miscellangous 3,850 3,603 847
Total Water Resources 522,948 491,894 31,054
Wastewater Collection
Salaries and wages 125,648 118,714 6,934
Personnel benefits 53,846 42,012 11.834
Professional sorvices 25,000 20,833 4,167
Telephone and postage 1,000 946 54
Utilities 19,500 33,635 (14,135)
Travel and training 1,500 1,085 415
Mainienanes:
Equipment 8,000 7,541 459
Sewage collection system 42,724 44 004 {1,280}
Motor equipment operation and mainten 50,600 44,215 5,785
Dapartmental supplies 15,600 11,360 3,640
Uniforms 2,500 2,349 (349)
Contracted services 30,000 50,119 (20,119)
Subdlyision reimbursement 35,000 120 34,280
Insurance and bords 53,309 50,806 3,003
Miseellaneous 25,500 2,447 23,053
Service exlensions 5,000 - 5,000
Utility service fess 105,147 109,305 (4,158)
Total Wastewater Collection 592174 540,591 58,583
Lower Creek Wastewater Treatment Plant:
Salaries and wages 287,558 292,445 {4,887)
Personnel benefits 119,736 116,114 3,622
Professional services 3,000 1,180 3,820
Telephone and postage 4 000 3,403 597
Utilities 295,000 342,045 {47,045)
Travel and training 2,060 425 1,574
Maintenance:
Building 2nd grounds 5,000 5,526 (526)
Equipment 60,030 45,562 14,438
Motor equipment oparation aud mainter 15,000 14,729 271
Departmental supplies 20,000 27,328 (7.328)
Uniforms 1,500 3,044 {1,544)
Contracted services 68,500 52,353 {83,853)
Chemicals 180,000 75,592 104,408
Insurance and bonds 23,203 20,580 2,623
Miscellaneous 7,500 450 7,050
Utility service fees 105,147 109,305 (4,158}
Total Lawer Creek Wastewater
Treatment Plant 1,195,144 1,210,082 (1 Q,938}

85




City of Lenoir, North Carolina
Enterprise Fund - Water and Sewer Fund

Supplemental Schedule of Expeaditures - Budget and Actual {Non-GAAP)
For the Year Ended June 30, 2013

{Schedule 11, Part T1, Page 3)

. 2013
YARIANCE
POSITIVE
EXPENDITURES (Continued) BUDGET ACTUAL (NEGATIVE)
Gunpawder Wastewater Treatment Plant: '
Salaries and wages 3 47548 § 47,533 8 3
Personnel benefits 15,585 15,105 480
Professional services 5,000 41,814 (36,814)
Telephone and postage 3,000 3,700 (700}
Utilities 143,000 156,895 (13,895)
Trave] and training 500 - 500
Mainienance: :
Building and grounds 6,500 101 6,399
Equipsnent 107,000 28,685 78,315
Modor equipinent opezation asd mainten 13,000 20,892 {7,892)
Deparlmental supplies 10,600 4,923 5,077
Uniforms 1,600 1,898 (298)
Coniracted services 8,000 23,029 {15,029)
Chemicals 60,000 63,213 {3,213y
Insurance and bonds 17,605 14,916 2,689
Miscellaneous 3,200 450 2,750
Utility service fees 105,147 109,305 (4,158)
Total Gunpowder Wastewater
Treatment Plant 546,678 532464 14,214
Wastewater Prefreatment.
Salaries and wages 69,599 99,560 (361}
Personnel benefits 31,751 37.069 082
Travel and training 250 404 {154)
Equipment mainferance 1,000 - . 1,000
Motor equipment operation and mainten 2,000 1,626 374
Uniforms 450 472 (22)
Supplies 14,000 10,448 3,552
Contracted services 30,000 27014 2,986
Miscellaneous 1,000 200 300
Total Wastewater Prefreatinent 186,050 177,193 8,857
Budgetary apprapriations:
Interest paid 434,270 487,280 (53,010}
Debt principal 2,069,043 2,056,320 12,723
Capital outlay:
Equipment 103,000 101,611 1,389
Total budgetary appropriations 2,606,313 2,645.211 (38,898)
TOTAL EXPENDITURES $ 8,024,120 § 7,880,011 3 144,109
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City of Lenoir, North Carolina

Enferprise Fund - Water and Sewer Fund
Supplemental Schedule of Revenues and Expenditures -
Budget and Actual (Non-GAAT)

For the Year Ended June 30, 2013

(Schedule 11, Part 1I)

Reconciliation from budgetary basis (modified accrual) to full accrual basis:

2013
Actual

Total revenues and other financing sources on

Schedule 7, Part I, Water and Sewer % 7,858,392
Tota! expenditures on Schedule 7, Part 11,

Water and Sewer 7,880,011
Revenues and other sources over (under)

expenditures and other uses: {21,619
Reconciling items:

Debt principal 2,056,320

(Increase) decrease in OPEB Liability (1,250)

Capital outlay 101,611

(Increase) decrease in accrued vacation pay {1,351)

Depreciation expense (1,237,304)

Total reconciling items 918,026

Change in Net Position (Exhibit G) 3 896,407
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Enterprise Capital Project F und

1d accounts for financial resources

The Enterprise Capital Project Fur
pater and

to be used for the acquisition and construction of major
sewer capital facilities. Projects are the Gunpowder Creek WWIP

Improvements and Powell Road Greenway Sewer,




City of Lenoir, North Carolina
Water and Sewer Capital Projects Fund

Supplemental Schedule of Revenues and Expenditures -
Budget and Actual (Non-GAAY)
For the Year Ended June 30,2013

(Schedule 12, Page 1)
Total Variance
Projest Prior Current To Positive
Authorization Years Year Date (Negative}
Gunpowder Creek WWTP Improvements
Revenues:
Clean Water Trust Fund Grant $ 3,850,000 - $ (3,850,000}
Total revenues 3,850,000 - - - (3,850,000)
Expenditures:
Enginesring 493,000 1,749 1749 (491,251)
Construction 3,052,000 - (3,052,000}
Contingency 305,000 - (305,000)
Closing Fee 77,000 - (77.000)
Total expenditures 3,927,000 - 1,749 1,749 (3,525,251}
Txpenditures {under) revenues
Other financing sources (usesk
Transfers from Water Fund 77,000 - {77,000)
Total Olker financing sources{uses): 77,000 - - . {(17,000)
TRevenues and other financing
sources over (under) expenditures
ond other financing vses - - (1,749) (1,749 {1,749}
Powell Road Greenway Sewer:
Revenues:
Clean Water Trust Fund Grant $ 578,500 ] “ {578,503
Total revenues 578,500 - - - {578,500y
Expenditotes:
Engineering 115,700 13,260 13260 (102,440}
Construction 462,800 - (462,800}
Total expenditures 578,500 - 13,260 13,260 {565,240)
Espendilures (under) revennes - - (13,260} {13,260} (13,260)
Total Waier and Sewer Capital
Project Fund $ - % - 8 (15,009 8 (15,009 % (15,009)
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Additional Financial Data

This section contains the following additional financial data: Schedule
of Cash and Investment Balances, Schedule of Ad Valorem Taxes
Receivable, and Analysis of Current Tax Levy.




City of Lenoir, North Carolina

Schedule of Cash and Investment Balances
June 30, 2013
{Schedule 13)

Cost Value Fair Value

Cash and Investments in the form of:
Cash:

On hand $ 1,085 § 1,985

in demand deposits (97,807) {987,807)

in certificates of deposit 2,634,399 2,534,399
Total Cash 2,438,577 2,438,577
Investments - North Caralina Capital

Management Trust 2,147,600 2,147,600

Term Trust 3,004,655 § 3,004,655
Total Cash and Investments $ 7590832 % 7,590,832
Distribution by Funds:

Governmental Fund types $ 4513841 ¢ 4,513,941

Enterprise Fund 3,076,891 3,076,891
Total $ 7,600,832 § 7,590,832
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City of Lenoir, North Carolina

Schedule of Ad Valorem Taxes Receivable
June 30, 2013

{Schedule 14)
Uncollected Collections Uncollected

Fiscal Balance and Balance

Year 7112012 Additions Credits _ 6/30/2013
2012-2013 $ - % 7614484 $ 7.176,790 $ 437,694
2011-2012 484,315 218,362 265,953
2010-2011 328,581 35,788 291,793
2009-2010 89,691 27,785 41,906
2008-2009 123,654 8,012 114,642
2007-2008 107,083 5,633 101,450
2006-2007 78,185 2,136 76,049
2005-2006 69,873 597 89,276
2004-2005 34,596 310 34,286
2003-2004 40,763 231 40,532
2002-2003 34,379 34,379 .-
Total $ 1,371,120 § 7614484 % 7,512,023 1,473,581

Less allowance for uncoflectible
ad valoram laxes receivable:

Ad valorem and vehicle $ 1,113,229
Downtown Service District 7 35,101 1,148,330
Ad valorem taxes receivable - net $ 325,251

Reconcitament with revenues:

Ad valorem taxes . $ 7,455,803
Discounts allowed 97,342
Prior year releases 1,749
Amounts written off per statute of limitations 33,877
Subtotal 7,588,571
Less penalties and inferest collected 76,548
Total collections and credils $ 7.512,023
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City of Lencir, North Carolina

Analysis of Gurrent Tax Levy
June 30, 2013

{Schedule 15)
Total Levy
Tofal Property
Property Amount of Excluding Motor
Valuation Rate Levy Yehicles Vehicles
Criginal levy:
Ad Valorem 5 1,473,630,803 & 056 & 8251,773 % 8,251,773
Daovntowm Service Disirct 14,793,200 .25 36,983 36,983
Moter Vehilcles:
General 04,635,536 0.56 529,959 3 529,858
Downtown Servlce District 82,800 0.25 157 ] 167
Discoveres 314,427 314,427
Releases o {1,518,815) (1,507,952} {10,853)
Total for year 1,603,022,429 7,614,484 7.085,221 519,263
Less uncollected tax at
June 30, 2013 {schedule 14} 437,684 323,749 113,245
Current yzar's taxes collected $ 7,176,790 % 6,771,472 _§ 405,318
94.26% 95.44% 78.06%

Percen! current year collected
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Capital Assets Used in the Operation of
Governmental Funds
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City of Lenoir, North Carolina

Statistical Section

This part of the City of Lenoir’s comprehensive annual financial report presents
detailed information as a context for understanding what the information in the
financial statements, note disclosures, and required supplementary inforination says
about the City’s overall financial healfth.

Confents

Financial Trends
These schedules contain trend information fo help the reader understand how
the City’s financial performance and well-being have changed over time.

Revenue Capacity
These schedules contain information 1o help the reader assess the factors
affecting the City’s ability fo generate ifs property and sales taxes.

Debt Capacity
These schedules present information to help the reader assess the gffordability
of the City’s current levels of understanding debt and the City’s ability to
issue additional debt in the future.

Demographic and Econoniic Information
These schedules offer demographic and economic indictors to help the reader
understand the environment within which the Cify’s financial activities fake
place and to help make comparisons over fime and with other governments.

Operating Information
These schedules contain information about the City’s operations and
resources to help the reader understand how the City’s financial information
relates to the services the City provides and the activities it performs.

Sources: Unless otherwise noted, the information in these schedules is derived fiom
the comprehensive annual financial reports for the relevant year. The Cily
implemented Statement 34 as of June 30, 2003; fables presenting govermment-wide
information include information beginning in that year.




Table 1

City of Lenair, North Carolina
Net Position by Compenant,
Last Ten Fiscal Years

(accrual basis of accounting)
{unaudited)

Governmentsl activitles
Net investment in capital asseis
Restricted
Unrsslricted

Tolat governmental activities net position

Buslness-type activities
Net investnent In capiis] assats
Usirestricted

Total business-ype activities net posilicn

Primary govemment
Net invastment in capltal assets
Resiricted
Unrestricted

Tetal primary gaverament net position

Gavernmental activities
Het investmaent in capilal assets
Rastricted
Uinrestricled

Total governmental activities net position

Business-lypa aciivilies
Nat invastment In capital assats
Unrestricted

Tolal business-lype aclivitles net position

Primary government
Net Investment in copital assets
Restricted
Usresiricted

Totel primary govemnment nel position

Fiscal Year

2003-2004 2004.2005 2005-2006 2006-2007 2007-2008
21,624,643 22,061,411 3 22,394,419 22,797845 § 22,986,647
555,638 535,140 793,977 887,159 1,102,646
3,207,785 3,202,086 2,820,176 5,041,203 5,416,440
285,478,066 25798657 $  27.008574 29,726097 § 30505733
20,769,721 22,091,118 $ 22490672 23447460 5 24,823,994
1,806,445 1,972,887 S 4,430,621 5984,846 § 6,085,897
22,576,166 24,063,088 $ 25,921,603 20,432,805 & 30,710,891
42,394,364 44,152,530 3 44,885,281 46,245,104 § 47,610,841
555,638 535,140 793,977 887,159 1,102,648
5,104,230 5,174,953 8,250,989 12,028,139 12,608,337
48,054,232 49,862,623 § 53,930,287 59,158,402 § 61,216,624
Fiscal Year
2008-2009 2009-2010 2010-2011 2011-2012 2012-2013

24,252,912 23,881,197 $ 24,687,510 24,742,318 § 23,908,648
752,328 319,048 2,068,699 1,628,404 2,090,733
5,440,565 5,995,460 3,485,229 2,749,885 2,689,418
30,445,865 30,196,705 § 30,251,428 20,120,687 § 28,588,799
26,673,159 28630531 § 30,152,608 31,523,163 § 32,458,793
4,853,315 3,208,275 § 3,602,725 3311422 § 3,272,193
31,526,474 31,838,806 & 33,765,331 34,834,585 § 35,730,092
60,928,131 52519,728 & 54,840,145 56265481 5 56,367,447
752,328 319,048 2,068,698 1,628,404 2,090,733
10,293,880 9,204,735 6,329,412 6,061,287 5,851,811
61,972,330 62,035,511 $ 63,238,227 63,955,172 § 64,319,791
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Table 2, (Page 1}

City of Lenoir, North Carolina
Changes in Net Position

Last Ten Fiscal Years

{accrual basls of accounting)

(unauditad)
Fiscal Year
2003-2004 2004-2005 2005-2006 2006-2007 2007-2008
Expenses
Goveinmental aclivities:

General government & 2,431,126 § 2484329 % 2,287280 % 2,532,093 5 2,842,285

Publtc safety 7.025,752 7A76,789 7,367,978 7.571,235 7,782,866

Transportation 1,829,235 2,001,950 1,987,133 1,877,492 1,864,505

Environmental profection 692,424 734,558 709,224 615,014 745,097

Feonomic and physical development 2,159,820 2,161,581 2,232,939 1,580,054 1,820,170

Culture and recreation 1,610,944 1,545,588 1,650,517 1,836,837 1,809,285

interest and fees 67,979 94,776 88,311 203,560 186,202
Total govsmmental activities expenses 15,917,280 16,469,692 16,331,382 16,216,286 17,251,110
Business-type aclivities:

Water and sewer 6,085,390 5,880,258 8,180,758 6742217 6,740,801
Tolal primary govemmment axpenses 5 22002670 § 22449850 § 22512140 % 22,958 502 $ 23,992,011
Program Revenues
Govemmental activities:

Charges for services:

Ganeral government $ 719,012 § 842,158 % 919389 § 300,365  $ 273,237

Public safety 65,927 79,986 177,690 323,431 339,085

Transportation 25274 12,316 32916 355,179 466,485

Environmenta! pretection 86,438 14,958 452,279 454,131 515,369
Ecanomic and physical development X 7412 7,648 5,825 276,584

Culture and recreation 164,448 153,667 152 653 207,022 161,973
Operating grants and contributions 2,737,525 2,534,558 2,856,330 3,787,630 2,258,081
Capita! grants and contributions 1,306,050 1,532,924 391,751 802,339 384,448

Tolal govemmental activiies program revenues 5,113,086 5,178,118 5,088,613 6,230,297 4,675,283
Business-type activitios:

Chargas for services:

‘Water and sewer 5,880,885 6,799,186 7,011,120 7,803,097 7,474,691
Cparating grants and contibutions - - - - -
Capital grants and contributions 365,400 1,580,850 1,153,392 12,979

Total business-type activiles program revenues 5,860,885 7,164,685 8,592,010 8,957,389 7,487,670
Total primary governimant program revenues 3 10973971 § 12,342,701 % 13,680523 § 15,187,686 % 12,162,933
Net (Expense)/Revenug

Governmenlal activities $ (10,804,194} $  (11,291477) § (11,242868) 3 (9,985,988) $  (12,575,847)
Business-iype activities {224,505) 1,184,328 2,411,262 2,245,172 746,768

<

Total primary government ngt expanse {11,028,699) § (10,107,149) 8 (8,831617 3 (7.770,818) $  (11,820,078)
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Table 2, (Fage )

City of Lenelr

Changes in Net Position
Last Ten Flscal Years
{accrual basls of accounting)

(unaudited)
Fiscal Year
2003-2004 2004-2005 2005-2006 2008-2007 2006-2007
General Revenues and Other Changes in Net Position
Governmental activities; :
Ad valorern faxes 3 5941565 3 5404153 & T.051606 % 6,995,180 % 6,995,180
Other taxes and llcenses 2,648,948 2,844,648 2.992,802 3,249,329 3,249,329
Unrestricted intergovernmeniat 1,239,037 1,272,757 1,165,617 1,244,682 1,244,682
Miscellaneous 836,368 792,217 837,805 765,686 765,666
Gain {loss) on sale of fixed assels 112,461 . 51,084
Transfars 582,020 (86,374} - - -
Payment from ABC Boarg 228,609 218,371 207,863 164,229 164,229
Interest earnad on investrments 45,437 53,823 146,230 284,435 284,435
Total governmental attivities 11,621,984 11,612,081 12,462,806 12,703,511 12,703,511
Business-type aclivities:
Miscellaneous 150,274 161,235 214,373 37,690 37,690
Galn (loss) on sale of fixed assets - - - - -
Transfers (582,020} 86,371 - - -
Interest earned on invesiments 49,185 65,885 172,082 257,750 257,750
Total business-fype activities {382,581 303,491 445,455 295,440 285,440
Tolal primary government $ 11,139,403 $ 11,916,842 § 12,859,261 § 12,998,951 $ 12,998,951
Changas In Net Position
Governmental activities $ 717,780 S 320574 8 1,209,837  § 2717,6523 8 127,664
Business-type activiias {607,086) 1,487,819 2,857,707 2,510,612 1,042,200
Total primary govarnment % 110,704 & 1,608,393 § 4067644 3 5,228,135 & 1,169,873
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Table 2, (Page 3)

City of Lenoir, North Garolina
Changes in Net Positien

Last Ten Fiscal Years

{accrual basts of accounting)

(unaudited)
Fiscal Year
2008-2009 2008-2010 2010-2011 2011-2012 2012-2013
Expenses
Governmental activities:

General govermnment 3 3,147,449 3 2,688,903 3 2,521,168 $ 3,195,538 § 3,046,921

Public safsty 8,462,402 8,474,676 8,609,721 §,215,430 8,207 917

Transportafion 2,278,315 2,128,506 2131705 2,097,876 2,347,838

Environsaental protection 754,872 772,0% 829,209 703,246 855,159

Esenomic and physical development 1,453,317 1,955,860 1,683,790 2,197,728 1,395,971

Gulture and recreation 2,234,821 2,025,347 2,051,873 2,195,855 2,007,287

Interest and fees 168,792 124,370 106,965 20,971 65,475
Total govemnmental activities expenses 18,489,958 18,189,843 17,834,522 18,697,714 17,886,558
Business-type activities:

Water and sewsr 6,790,236 7,012,770 6,748,649 7,048,311 6,961,985
Total primary government expanses $ 257280204 § 25182813 § 24683171 § 25747025 § 24,848,553
Program Revenues
Govarnmenta! aclivities:

Charges for services:

General govemment $ 468,629 § 664,933 5 777,846 S 1,059,892 § 410,011

FPublic safety 161,214 196,711 194,263 180,669 414,382

Transporiation - 18,926 21,151 29,707 19,484

Environmental proteclion 525,142 562,743 556,164 628,383 630,548
Economic and physica! development 210,111 238,413 106,171 4,851 2,300

Culture and recreation 226,302 253,693 216,991 212,195 263,662
QOperating grants and contributions 1,831,041 2227212 2,008,622 2,671,333 1,685,037
Capital granis and contributions 800,431 752,229 868,037 202,102 385,146

Totel govermmental activities program revenuas 4,241 870 4,916,850 4,747,345 5,190,159 3,787,438
Businsss-type aclivities:

Charges for sesvices:

Water and sewer 7.472,724 7,220,490 7,241,793 7,575,832 7,777,598
Operating grants and contributions - - 1,374,704 - .
Capital grants and contributions ~ - - 500,000

Total business-type activitles program revenues TAT2,724 7,220,480 8,616,497 8,075,832 7,077,598

Total primary govarmment program revenues $ 11,714,694 § 12,138350 & 13,363,842 % 13,265,891 S 11,565,036

Net (Expense)/Revenue

Govemmental activities §  {(14248,098) $ (13.253983) $ {13,187,177y $§ (13,507,585) $ (14,099,130}
Business-fyps aclivitlas 662,488 207,720 1,867,848 1,025,521 515,613

Total primary government net expenss $ (13,585,610) & (13046263) $ (11,319,320) % (12,484,034 $ (03,283,517
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Table 2, (Page 4}

Clty of Lenoir

Changes in Net Posltion
Last Ten Fiscal Years
{accrual basls of accounting)

{unaudited)
Fiscal Year
2008-2009 2009-2010Q 2010-2011 2011-2012 2012-2013
Genaral Revenues and Other Changes In Net Position
Govemnmental activities: .
Ad valoram taxes 3 B0OT6572 § 7,206,622 $ 7370866 & 6,824,494 ] 7,514,078
COther taxes and licenses 3717892 3,470,522 3,762,006 3,840,310 3,802,184
Unrestricted intergovernments! 1,817,749 1,464,036 1,524,081 1,539,309 1,743,540
Miscellaneous 436,693 508 575 220,488 85,751 260,959
Galn (loss) on sale of fixed assats 25,862 29,815 16,794 (74,023)
Payment from ABC Board 282,227 216,980 207,532 219,868 213,630
Interast earned ¢n fnvestments 122,035 18,273 10,351 7,183 6,564
Total gevermmmental activities 14,188,230 13,004,823 13,104,334 12,534,689 13,567,342
Business-type activitles:
Miscellanecus 55,100 4,946 44,429 49,674 78,318
Interest earned on investments 77,995 3,665 4,248 3,059 2,476
Tolal business-type activities 133,085 104,612 48,677 52,733 80,794
Total primary government $ 14321.3-25 $ 13,109,435 % 13,153,011 § 12,587,422 S 13,648,136
Changss In Nef Position
Govemmental activities $ (69,868) $ (249,160) § (82,843) s (972,866 $§ {631,788)
Busingss-type aclivities 815,583 312,332 1,816,625 1,079,254 896,407
Total primary government $ 755,715 § 63,172 § 1,833682 § 106,388 & 364.619
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Table 3

City of Lenolr, North Garolina

Fund Balances, Governmental Funds
Last Ten Fiscal Years

{madiiad accrual bas!s of accouniky)
(unaudied)

General Fund
NanSpendable
Rasticled
Assigned
Unassigned

Tolal general fund

All Other Governmental Funds
NonSpandable
Restricted
Unassignad

Totat all other governmental funds

Generat Fund
HNonSpendable
Restricted
Assigned
Unasslgned

Total general Tund

Alf Other Governmantal Funds
MonSpendable
Resiricled
Unassigned

Tolal 2l other governmental funds

Fiscal Year

2003-2004 2004-2005 2005-20086 2006-2007 2007-2008
$ 4,573,128 $ 1769710 § 2420509 $ 3,414,011 3,525,760
$ 470,000
1,797,042 2,024,965 2,285,977 2,188,151 3,318,100
$ 3840171 $ 3704675 8 4,406,466 & 6,802,162 6,844,860
5 263,470 § 276,956 3 779,053 & 230,543 240,783
264,023 152,025 491,232 695,086 052 621
B - % - § - 5 925,628 1,163,304
Fiscal Year
2003-2009 2008-2010 2010-2011 20112012 2012-2013
5 20608 § 34,843 6827
2,409,565 2,116,002 2,012,151 1,702,940 1,827,592
610,557 555,064 468,178
3,663,831 3,760,253 2,898,417 3,028,662 3,211,745
$ 6462306 § 5816255 % 5548733 § 5,382,209 5,514,342
$ 248477 $ 251,441 § 253553 § 255,181 256,314
520,420 187,512
(238B,358) (316,786} (228,544)
$ 768,597 § 438953 § 15,195 § (61,605) 27,770
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Table 4, {Page 1}
Gity of Lenolr, North Garolina

Changes in Fund Balances, Govermmental Funds

l.ast Ten Flscal Years
{moddied nocrual basls of accounting)

{unaudited)
Fiscal Year
2003-2004 2004-2005 2005-2006 2006-2007 2007-2008
Revanues )
Ad valorem taxes 5 5886658 § 6352,006 & 7,054,608 7,021,038 7,058,906
Gther {axes end Feenses 2,648,948 2,844 848 2,892,602 3,248,329 3,064,085
Unrestricted atergovernmenta revenues 1,238,037 1,272,757 1,165,617 1,244,692 1,424,792
Resiricted intergovernmental revenues 2137575 2,737,488 3,253 465 3,000,160 2,974,919
Parmits and fess 1,434,444 168,753 136,040 138,612 142,632
Sales and services 241,117 841,670 1,609,688 1,501,516 1,603,518
|nvestment ¢amngs 45,437 53,825 145,230 284,435 248,361
Miscellansous §36,368 2,122,215 1,027,205 2,285,856 339,070
Payment from ABG Board 228,609 218,371 207,863 164,220 152,732
Tolal revenues 15,097,143 16,711,820 1749349 18,059,716 17,849,805
Expenditures
Gaparal govemment 2,363,322 2,921,269 2,171,212 3,648,956 2,857,708
Publ'c safely 6,673,694 7,183,289 7,080,072 7,288,312 7,446,694
Transperlation 1,226,525 1,198,640 1,176,854 1,082,832 1,232,217
Enviranmenial prolection 628934 875,569 653,224 83,208 702,619
Ecoromic and physical devefopment 2,153,791 2,152,580 2,355,908 1,550,722 2,038,158
Cultural and recreation 1,483,959 1,411,359 1,507,834 1,675,880 1,660,371
Cepita culiay 2,335,000 2,462,304 3,276,177 930,585 529,934
Debt servics:
Interast 67,980 84,715 98,281 203,560 146,795
Principal 897,671 501,831 717,440 837,637 1,066,530
Tolal expendituras 17,634,793 18,071,626 16,038,038 1?".806.'@}_‘ 17,781,072
Excess of revenues over (under} expenditures (1,634,650) {1.859,607) (1,542.601) 1,152,655 168,833
Otier Financing Sources (Usas)
Praceeds from nstaliment purchase §92,500 1,189,300 2,454,000 1,189,207 305,000
Pracoeds from dispoesal of capital assats - 112,461 51,084 36,540
Transfers in 712,381 265,835 173,725 285,646 300,000
‘Fransfers aut (130,861) (352,006 (173,725} {285,046} {300,000)
Total ¢thar Fnandng sources {uses) 1,474 520 1,225,390 2,505,084 1,189,297 341,540
Nat change In fund balances $ {160,130) _§ (134,307 § £62,403 2 342,262 610,373
Debl sendee as a percentage of noncapdal expendilures 5.01% 4.48% 5.18% 8.17% 7.03%
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Table 4,{ Page 2}

City of Lenoir, North Garolina

Changes in Fund Balances, Governmental Funds
Last Ten Fiscal Years

imodified accruel bas's of accounting)

(unauditad}
Fiscal Year
2008-2008 2009-2010 2010-2011 2071-2012 2012-2013
Revenuas
Ad vakerem faxes 5 8,127,462 $ 7,274,284 7,246 878 7,020,833 7,455,803
Otner taxes and Feenses 3,717.692 3,470,522 3,762,005 3,840,310 3,602,194
Uarestricled intergovernmental revenues 1,517,749 1,484,030 1,524,021 1,539,309 1,743,940
Restricted intergovemnmenla revenues 2,877,185 1,110,953 938,984 3,224 873 2,050,183
Permits and fees . 183,048 117,900 189,682 106,546 200,737
Sales and services 1,422,771 1.481,369 1,561,101 1,639,626 1,536,618
Imvestment eamings 122,034 14,5768 8,768 7,163 6,564
Mscellansous 194,569 842,745 210,547 86,761 200,959
Payment frem ABC Board 202,227 216,680 207.632 218,868 213,630
Taotal revanuss 18,454,728 16,683,267 15,657,618 17,805,281 17,370,528
Expanditures .
General govemment 3,934,002 24850808 2393427 3,001.812 2,850,137
Public safety 7,945,639 7,823,897 7,881,578 7,802,219 7,859,864
Transportatien 1,479,813 1,359,182 1,418,860 1,354,885 1,733,257
Environmental protection 926,713 679,803 748,417 775,384 785,039
Ecoromic atd physical development 1,605,638 525,443 580,335 2,187,837 1,365,763
Custural and recreation 2,138,832 1,704,162 1,805,049 2,073,630 1,887,295
Caphisl Projects 1,164,897 315,226 856,650 255038 10,561
Debt sendce:
Intarest 158,793 106,730 78,943 90,971 65,475
Principal 031,229 851,467 78,766 508,763 625,824
Tolal axpeadiues 20,224,745 15.942.024 16,352,095 18,420,398 17,283,315
Excess of revenues over {under) expenditures (1,770,017} {248,657) (694,476) (615,118) 87,213
Gther Financing Sources [Uses)
Procaeds from insteiment purchase 621,653 526,000 355,000
Proceeds from disposal of caplial assets 31,183 22,518 16,794 134,295
Transfers In
Transfers oul 3 (€0,000) (138.837)
Total olher financng sources (Uses) 652,848 27,484) 387,063 371,784 134,285
Hal changa in fund batances 3 (1.117471) § (276, 141) {307.113) {243.324) 221,508
Debt service as a percentags of noncapltal expendivres 5.72% 6.13% 5.46% 5.61% 4,00%
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Table 10

City of Leneir, North Carolina
Ratios of General Bonded Debt Qutstanding
Last Ten Fiscal Years

(unaudited)

Fiscal Year
Ended
June 30

Percentage of

Acfual Taxable

Per
Capifa

2013
2012
2011
2010
2009
2008
2007
2008
2005
2004

0 4 7 B T D B O O O

0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%

AN W D W N0 W

Notes: Details regarding the City's outstanding debt can be found In the noles to the financial statements.

See Table 13 fot personal income and population data.
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Table 11

Clty of Lencir, North Garolina

Direct and Overlapping Governmental Activities Debt
As of June 30, 2013

{unaudited)

Estimated
Share of
Estimated Direct and
Debt Percentage Overlapping
Governmental Unit Ouftstanding Applicable Debt
Debt repaid with property taxes
Caldwasil County General Obligation Bonds $ 2,445,000 27.63% $ 675,554
Other debt
Caldwell County equity purchase contracts 33,335,074 27.63% 9,210,481
Subtotal, overlapping debt 9,886,034
Lenoir direct debt 1,525,688
Total direct and ovariapping debt $ 11,411,623

Sources: Assessed value dala used fo estimate applicable percentages provided by the
Caldwell County assessor, Debt outstanding provided by each governmental unit,

Notes:  Ovarlapping governments are those fhat colncide, at least in part, with the geographic boundaries
of the City. This schedule estimates the portion of the cutstanding debt of those overlapping
governments that Is borne by the residents and businesses of Lenolr. This process recognizes
that, when censidering the City’s ability fo issue and repay long-lerm debt, the entire dabt burden
borne by the residents and businesses should be taken inle account. Howsver, this does not
imply that every taxpayer |5 a resident - and, therefore, responsible for repaying the debt - of
gach overlapping government.

For debt repaid with properly taxes, the percentage of overlapping debt applicable Is estimated using
taxable property values. Applicable percentages were estimated by determining the porilon of
another govarnment unit's taxable assessed valua that ks within the City's boundaries and dividing it by each
unit's tolal laxable assessed valua. This approach was also used for Caldwell County's other debi,

107




Table 42

Clty of Lenolr, North Carolina
Legal Debt Flargin Information
Last Ten Fiscal Years
{unaudited)

Galculation of legal debt margin as of June 30, 2013
Assessed valuation - Janeany 1, 2012
Dabt Limit - 8% of assessed value
Gross long-term debt
Less statulory deductions
Bonds applicable lo water system

Legal debt marg'n

Debl Bl
Total ret debt applicabie te fimit
Lega) dabt marghn

To'al nst debl spplicable lo the timit
as d percentage of debl fmd

Debt fimilt
Tola! net debt appleatle Lo Fmit
Legal debt margin

Tolat net dabt appficable to the Tmit
Bs a pertentage of deblt fmt

% 1,583,022428
$ 128,641,724
3 13,820441

. 13,829,441

SA1z12063

Fiscal Year

200_3-2004 2004-2008 2005-2006 2008-2007 2007-2008
§  oLEc0BMd  § 51,178,833 & 102141486 $ 102277265 §& 104,757.860
19,204,369 18045328 22,603,405 21,367,609 18,966,321

$ 72856415 § 72133304 § 79538001 5 B0BROSS § 85,701,530
2081% 20.89% 22.13% 20.91% 18.10%
Fiscal Year ]

2008-2009 2008.-2010 2010-2011 2011.2012 2012:2013
5 118330309 $ 114,086,842 5 115475963 § 118214263 § 128641794
19,543,613 17,360,478 18,870,854 16.502,668 13,829,441

§ 98855688 § 97620384 & 06586129 § 04711697 § 112.812.383
$6.37% 15,40% 16.35% 13,86% 10.92%

Note: Usnder i), ¢, Stalutes the City's cutslanding dobt shiowd nol exceed 8% of total assessed property

va've less stalutory deductors.
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Table 13

City of Lenofr, North Carolina
Demographle and Economic Statistics
Last Ten Calendar Years

{unaudited)
Personal Per Capita
Calendar Income Personal Unemployment

Year Population (In Millions} Income Rate

2012 18,123 * * 12.9%
2011 18,123 $ 2,240 $ 27,261 13.5%
2010 18,261 8 2,238 3 26,958 12.4%
2009 10,064 5 2,235 % 27,989 13.4%
2008 18,952 $ 2,246 8 28,127 10.7%
2007 18,954 $ 2,162 5 27,240 7.4%
2008 18,588 5 2,477 $ 27,520 7.8%
2005 18,479 $ 2,086 $ 26,480 7.8%
2004 18,458 s 2,039 $ 26,008 7.3%
2003 18,482 $ 1,984 3 25,148 7.9%

Sources: Per capita parsenal Income and personal Income are for Galdwell Geunty and Is provided by the U.S. Bureay of Economic Analysls.

Population Is for the City of Lenolr and provided by the U.S. Cansus. Unemployment rate is for the Gity of Lenoir and
provided by the N.C, Employment Sectirity Commission

* indlcates not available
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Table 14

City of Lenoir, North Carolina
Principal Employers

Current Year and Ten Years Ago
{unaudited)

2013 2003
Range of Range of
Employer Employees Rank Employees Rank

Caldwell County Schools 1,000+ 4
Merchants Distributors 1,000+ 2
Bernhardt Fumniture Go., Inc. £00-999 3 1,000+ 2
Caldwel! Memorial Hospital 500-999 4 500-999 4
Caldwall Community College and Tech Institute 500-999 5
Wal-Mart Associates, Inc. 500-999 8
Caldwell County H00-399 7 500-999 5
Broyhili Furniture Industries, Inc. 250-499 8 1,000+ 1
Thomasvllle Furniture Industeies, Inc. 250-499 9
Fairfield Chair Co. 250-499 10 250-499 10
GCity of Lenoir 250-499 11
Avery Deninison 250499 12
Rpm Wooed Finishes Group 250-499 13
Greer §.aboratories 100-249 14
Vantage Foods 100-249 15
Onin Staffing LLC 100-249 16
Kincaid Fumniture Co., Inc. 100-24¢ 17 1,000+ 3
Bemis Manufacluring 100-249 18
Fairvalue Store 100-249 19
Foothills Temporary Employment 100-249 20
Homecare fanagement Corp. 250-499 G
Meridian Automotive Sytstems 250-409 7
Sealed Air Corporation 250-499 8

250-499 9

Nacco Materials Handling Group, Inc.

Source: Employment Security Commission of NG

Note:

Employment data is only available in ranges.
Data for 2003 is only available for top ten empioyers.
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Tabie 15

City of Lenalr, North Garolina

FuilimeEquiratent Gity Government Emplayess by Function/Program
Last Ten Fisca Years

funapdad)
Full-time-Equivalent Employees as of Jung 30
2004 2005 2608 2007 2603

General Governmant

Adminisirative 119 12.0 100 125 105

Hudlding Meivtenance 40 4.0 5.0 50 60

Enginesting 3.0 3.0 3.0 3,0 a0

Cemetorios 30 3.0 1.0 10
Yehila Senvices 55 4.0 40 4.0 4.0
Public Safety

Police 170 750 705 750 8.0

Fire 620 63,0 #0.0 60.0 6§30
Transporiatien

Sireels 160 £3.0 150 320 13.0
Envlronmental Pratection

Sarnitaton 13.0 14 420 13.0 115
Econumic and Physical Povelopment

Dovmilewn Distict 1.5 2.0 29 20 20

Planring 30 3 3L 40 4.0
GCullure and Recreation

Centers and Paris 05 10.0 9.0 149 Bk

Anuatle and Fitness Centar 4.5 15.0 17.0 18.6 2.0

Landscaping 9.0 7.0 6.5 680 8.0
Water and Sewer Utllity

Bernhardt Water Freatmen! Plant 85 9.0 4.0 9.0 2.0
‘Water Dislribuetion 19.5 18.0 17.0 150 i7.0

Waler Resources

Waslewster Cokeclion 1.0 8.0 8.0 6.0 80

Wastewaler Prelrealment 3.0 30 30 an a0
Guapowwder snd Lower Cresk

Wastewslee Treatment Plants 110 100 10 1.0 118
Total 282.0 271.0 262.0 2720 302.0
Fulldime-Equivalent Employees as of June 30
2009 2019 2091 2012 2013

General Government

Administretive 4.0 13.0 146 1645 1256

Bufiding Kaintenanes [41] 6.0 6.0 64 6.0

Engineering 39 2.0 20 2.0 20

Cemelerias 1.0 1.6 10 1.0 1.0
Vehitle Sendees 4.0 4.0 440 4.0 40
Publlc Safety

Polkes 76,0 6.0 715 710 70.0

Fire 85.0 65.0 66.0 6.0 53.0
Transportation

Streets 14.8 14.5 14.5 14.5 14.0
Environmental Protectlon

Santtatien 125 125 135 125 118
Econoemic and Physical Developmant

Doantovin District 20 20 290 2.0 20

Planing 50 60 50 5.0 40
Culture and Recreallon

Centers and Parks 280 284 2758 250 20,6

Aquatic and Finess Genler 225 21.0 2.0 20 225

Landscaplng 65 8.5 75 a5 8.0
Water and Sewer UtHity

Bemhardl VWaler Treatment Plant 9.0 2.0 &0 20 9.0

Water Olstrbution 13.0 140 1440 4.0 ja0

Water Resouices 80 50 7.0 70 7.0

Wastawater Cofection 64 U] 5.0 45 435

Wastawaler Prelreatment 30 3.0 30 3.0 30
Gurpowder and Lowsr Greek

Wastewalar Trealment Pianls i1.0 11.0 11.0 1.0 1.0

Total 309.0 305.5 3120 3105 2345
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Table 16

City of Lanoir, North Carollna

Qperaling Indicators by FunctionPragram
Last Ten Fiscal Yeass

{unaudited)

Date of Incorporation: 1351
Form of Government; Geuncil and Kanager
Avea in Sguare Mles: 191

Fiscal Year

ProgramiFunctior 2003-2004 2004-2005% 2005-2006 2008-2007 2007-2008
Police

Phys'cal arrests 1,546 3,492 1,878 2,093 1842

Incident repodls 2,220 1471 2,242 2,087 2,168

Paiking vidlations 2,677 2,169 1,768 1464 1442

Cilalions fssued 3,269 4057 4,432 3,850 2837
Fire

Cal's answered 1,818 1,927 2400 2,599 2417

Inspactons 413 509 422 400 378
Sanllallon

Refuse collected (tons per day) * * 48.68 4571 34.77
Streals

Streat resudacing (mfes) 0.0% 275 275 1.00 1.50
Parks and Recreation

Aguatc/Filnass membersitps * * 540 4,085 506

AqueBe/Finess admissions * * * 7,369

Youlh sponts participants 588 556 356 612 1008

Adut sports parfcipants 417 245 203 320 385
Water system

New connections 39 ezt 78 56 39

VWater maln breaks &1 24 62 43 43

Humber of utily customers 8,128 9,478 2544 9,647 8,702

Daly avg consumpficn In milon gatons 6.2 6.2 6.3 6.4 5.2
Yastewaler system

Humber of utlity customers 7.489 7819 7.851 8,324 8.403

Dally avg lreatment in miZon gakons 328 3.28 292 341 3

Flscal Year

Program/Function 2008-2008 200§-2010 2010-2014 20112012 2012-2013
Paollce

Physical arresis 1,881 1818 1,935 2,179 2,421

Insdent reporta 2135 22 205t 1,048 2,007

Paridng viotalons 10290 858 863 4G 575

Citatlons fssued 2082 2,548 2571 2846 2,683
Fire

Cals answered 2,414 2,568 2,563 2431 2610

Inspactions 311 405 a1 297 as5
Sanitation

Refuse coflecled {fons per day) 27.58 2292 27.20 2503 2354
Straets

Strest resurfacing (milas) 1.38 0.76 0.75 0.60 1.49
Parks and Recreation

Agquatc/Filness membarships 743 1353 1.053 1,908 2078

AquatciFitaess admissions T.440 0,046 11,652 11,640 14,509

Youth sposts participants 1040 1034 1045 1070 s

Adult sporis paridpants 858 324 284 285 235
Water sysiem

New coniections 35 25 30 25 24

Water main breals 38 17 28 35 28

Number of uliity customers 9,743 8,670 9,673 9,833 0,684

Daty avg censumplion fx midlon gallons 58 56 6.2 1.2 55
Wastewater syslem

MNumber of ulfity customers 8,463 8,320 8,209 8,110 8,002

Daty avg lrealmenl in milon galons .82 4.25 343 314 399

Sources: Varous Chy depariments
* indicates not avatable
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Table 17

Gity of Lenolr, North Carolina

Capilal Asset Statistics by Function/Program
Last Ten Fiscal Years

{unsudited)
Fiscal Year

PropramiFunction 2003-2604 2004-2006 ~ 2005-2006 ] 200&-_2097 2007-2008
Pollce

Statiens 1 1 f 1 1

Substations. 5 5 5 5 5

Pafrol unlts 63 B 59 52 52
Firs

Stal'ons 2 3 2 2 2
Sanltation

Cobacton rucks 8 6 6 6 B
Streols

Mias of paved slieals 110,86 140.52 11985 119,78 126062

Mles of unpaved sireets .08 3.02 302 2,69 254

Slreet tights 2,556 2496 2461 2,545 2,556
Parks and Recreation

Commumily canters 3 3 3 4 4

Parks 2 2 2 4 4

Svdmming pools 2 2 2 2 2

Tenn's courts 12 8 g 8 8

Bascbal/sofiball diamonds g [ [} 10 i0

Sopcer felds " 1% 11 1 12

Pites of greemyay Q z 4.38 7.20 7.80
Waltersystam

Wies of waler Enes 160.26 2078 2078 2078 208.0

Fire hydrants go1 ga1 01 992 992

Storage capacily {miflons of galivns) 134 13.4 13.4 134 13.4

HWaxdmum daly capacity (milions of gatons) 12 12 12 12 12

Treatment Plants 1 1 i i ]
Wastewaler systant

#iles of sevage Hnes 175.72 175.78 166,07 205.07 205.07

Miles of sform sevwers 21 25 20 20 20

Kaxdmum dafy capacity (mifons of galtons) § 8 8 8 B

Trealmen! Planls 2 2 2 2 2

Fisgsl Year

ProgramiFunction 2008-2008 2009-2010 20190-2014 2011.2012 2012-2013
Pollce -

Sialions i 1 1 1 1

Substadons 5 5 5 & 2

Patrol units 52 52 52 52 AT
Fire

Statiens 2 2 2 2 2
Sanitation

Colteclion trucks 3 7 7 7 7
Streals

Kties of paved slreels 121.56 12865 121.55 121.55 121.55

K+iss of unpaved streets 2684 284 264 264 239

Slreet fights ' 2,667 2,575 2,577 2,576 2,433
Parks and Recreatlon

Communiy canlers 4 4 4 4 4

Parks 4 4 4 4 4

Svimmirg pocls 2 2 4 z 2

Tennls colrts 8 B 8 8 8§

BascbalVsoftoall diamonds 10 10 10 i0 10

Soceer flelds 12 12 12 i2 12

*Ales of greemvay B.OG 8,00 $0.60 10.00 10.C0
Yater systom

tdes ofwater Fnes 2194 219.4 219.4 2194 2194

Fire bydrapis 1,070 1,070 1,070 1,070 1,070

Slorage capacity {millions of gatons) 134 134 13.4 134 134

Haximum dafly capacity (mElons of gafions} 12 12 12 12 12

Treatment Plants £ 1 1 1 1
Wastewaler system

Mies of sgavage lines 21514 215.11 215,41 215.11 216,41

Vies of storm sewers 20 20 20 20 20

tdaximum daily capacily (milons of gafons} 8 g 8 8 8

Treatment Planis 2 2 Z 2 2
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S. Fric Bowman, P.A.

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANT

403 South Green Street
P.O. Box 1476

Morganton, NG 28680-1476
Telephone (828) 438-1065

Report On Internal Contrel Over Financial ReportingFax(828)43&9117

End on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of
Financial Statements Performed In Accordance With
Government Buditing Standards

Independent Auditor’s Report

To. the Honorable Mayor and
HMembers of the City Council
City of Lenoir, Hoxth Carclina

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to
financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States, the accompanying financial
statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, the
aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the
aggregate remaining fund information of the ity of Lenoir, North Carcolina,
as of and for the year ended June 30, 2013 and the related notes to.the
financial statements, which collectively comprises the City of Lenoir’s basic
financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated September 30,
2013, Our report includes a reference to other auditors who audited the
financial statements of the City of Lenoir ABC Board,. as described in our
report on the City of Lenoir’s financial statements. This. report does not
include the results of the other auditors’ testing of internal control over
finanaeial reporting or compliance and other matters that are reported
separately by those auditors. The fipancial statements of the City of Lenoir
ABC Board were not audited in accordance with Government Auditing Standards.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of (he financial statements, we
considered the City of Lenolir’s internal control over financial reporting
{internal control} to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances for the purpose of expressing ocur opinions on the financial
statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
affectiveness of the City of Lenoir's internal control. Acocordingly, we do
not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the City of Lenoir’s internal

control,

A déficiency in internal cobtrol exists when the design or operation of
a control does not allow management or employees, ia the normal course of
performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct
‘misstatements on a timely basis., A material weakness is a deficliency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a
reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial
statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely
basis. :
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7o the Honoxabls Mayor and
Members of the City Council
City of Lenoir, North Carclina

A signifigant defiolonoy is a deficiency or combination of deficlenciles, in
internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important

snough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

OCur consideration of the internal control was for the limilted purpose
described in tha first paragraph of This section and was not designed to
identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material
weaknesses or significant deficlencies and therefore, material weaknesses or
significant deficiencies may exlst that were not identifisd. Given these
1imitations, during our audit we did not identify any defilciencles in
internal sontrol khat we consider o be material wesknessss. However,
materlal weaknesses may exist that have not been identified. We did identify
certain deficioncies in Internal control, described in the accompanying
schedule of findings and questioned costs as 2013~1 and 2013-2 Lhat we
consider to be significant deficiencles,

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of cbtaining reasonable agsurance ahout whethexr the City of
Lenoir’s financial statements are free of material misstatement, we performed
tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
gontracts and grant agreements, noncowmpliance with which could have a direct
and material effsct on the determination of financial statement amounts.
Rowever, providing an opinion on compliance with thoss provisions was net an
objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion.
The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other
matters that are reguired to he reported under Gouyernment buditing Standards.

¢ity of Lenoir’s Response to Findings

city of Lenoir’s responses to the findings identified in ocur audit are
described in the accompanylng schedule of.findings and questionsd costs. The
Clty’s responss was ot subjected to the auvditing procedures applied in the
audit of the Financlal statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion on

ie,

Purpese of this Report

The purpose of this repoxt is solely to describe the scope of our
tasting of internal control and compliamce and the result of thal testing,
and not to provide an opinien on the effectiveneas of the entity’s internal
control or on oompliance. This report is an integral part of an audit
performed in accoxdance with Government Auditing Standards in considexing the
entity’ & intexnal contxol and compliance. Rocordingly, this communication is

net suitable for any other puxpose,

S. Eric Bowman, P.A.
Cartified Public Accountant

iMorganton, Porih Carolina
September 30, 2013
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S. Eric Bowman, P.A.

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANT

403 Soulh Gresn Street
. P.O. Box 1476
Report On Compliance For Its Major Federal Program;Morganton, NC 28680-1476
Report on Internal Control Over Compliance; Telephone (828) 438-1065
In Accordance With OMB Circular A-133; Fax (828) 438-9117

and the State Singie Audit Implementation Act
Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Honorable Mayor and
Members of the City Council
City of Lenoir, MNorth Caroclina

Report on Compliance for Its Major Federal Program

We have audited the City of Lenoir, North Carolina, compliance with the
types of compliance reqguirements descrived in the OMB Circular &2-133
Compliance Supplement and the Audit Manual for Governmental Aunditors in North
Carolina, lssued by the Local Government Commission, that could have a direct
and material effect on the City of Lenoir’s major federal program for the
yvear ended June 30, 2013. The City of Lenoir’s major federal program is
identified in the summary of auditor’s results section of the accompanying
schedule of findings and questioned costs,

Management’s Responsibility

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements of laws,
regulations, contracts, and grants applicable to its federal'programs.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Qur responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for the City
of Lenoirfs major federal program based on our audit of the types of
compliance requirements referred to above., We conducted our asudit of
compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits
contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General
of the United States; and OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local
Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations, and the State Single Audit
Implementation Act. Those standards, OMB Circular A-133, and the State
Single Audit Implementation Act require that we plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncomplisnce with the types of
compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and
material effect on a major federal program occurred., An audit includes
erxamining, on a test basis, evidence about the City of Leneir’'s compliance
with those requirements and performing such other procedures, as we
considered necessary in the circumstances.

¥Wie pelieve that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our apinion

on compliance for its major federal program. However, our audit does not
provide a legal determination on the City of Lenoir’s compliance,
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Te the Honorable dayor and
Members of the City Council
city of Lenoir, Morth Carolina

opinion on Its Majox Faderal Program

In our opinion, the City of Lenoir complied, in all material respects,
with the types of compliance raguirements referred to above that could have a
direct and material effect on its najor federal program foxr The yoar ended
June 30, 2013.

Repori on Internal Contzol Ove:r Compliance

Management of the City of Lenoix is responsible for establishing and
maintaining effective internal control over compliance with the types of
compliance reguirements referred o above. In planning snd performing ouxr
audit of compliance, we considered the gity of Lenoir’s internal control over
compliance with the types of requirements thak aould have a dirsect
and materisl effect on a major federal program to determine the auditing
procedures that are appropriate in the clroumstanges for the purpose of
gxpressing our opinion on compliance for its wajor federal program and to
test and reperk on inkternal control ovsr compliance in accordance with OMB
Cirecular A-133, buk not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of internal contxol aver compliance. Recordingly, we do not
oxpress an opinion on the effoctiveness of the City of Lenoir’s internal
gontrol ovar compliance.

A deflclency in internal control over compliance exiats when the design
or operation of a control ovex compliance does not allow management or
enployees, in the noxmal course of performing thelr assigned functions, to
prevent, ox detect snd correct, moncompllanse with a type of compliance
requirement of a federal program on & timely basls, A materlal weakness in
internal conkrol over compliance 1s & daficiency, or conbination of
deficienciss, in internal control over compliance, such that thexe is a
reasonable possibility that material poncempliance with a type of conplliance
reguirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and
corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficliency in internal control
over complisnos ls a deficiency, or combination of daficiencies, in internal
control over compliance with a fype of compliance reguirement of a federal
program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal contyol over
compliance, yet impoxtant enough to merit sttention by those charged with
governance.

our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the
limited purposs deacribed in the first paregraph of this section and wa= not
designed to identify all deficiencles in internal control ovex compliance
that might be significant defloienciss or material weaknesses, We did not
igentify any deficiencies in internal contrel over compliance that we
consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may ezist
that have not been identified.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is
solely to descrlbe the scope of our testing of internal control over
compliance and the results of that testing based on the reguirements of oMB
Circular A-133. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other

pnrpose +

5, Eric Bowman, P.A.
Certified Public Accountant
Worganton, North Carolina
September 30, 2013
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S. Fric Bowman, P.A.

CERTIFIED PUB&L%%QCQQNJ%Tliance For Tts Major State Program;

Report on Internal Control Qver Compliance; 408 South Gresen Strest
In Accordance With OMB Circular A-133; and the P.O. Box 1476
State Single Audit Implementation Act " Morganton, NC 28680-1476
. Telephone (828) 438-1065
Independent Auditor’s Report Fax (828)438-9117

7o the Honorable Mayor and
Members of the City Council
Ccity of Lenoir, North Carolina

Report on Compliance for Its Major State Program

We have audited the City of Lenoir, North Carolina, compliance with the
types of compliance requirements described in the Audit Maaual for
Governmental Auditors in North Carcolina, igsued by the Local Government
Commission, that could have a direct and material effect on the City of
Lenoir’s major state program for the year ended June 30, 2013. The City of
Lenoir!s major state program is identified in the summary of auditor’s
results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and guestioned
costs.

Management’ s Responsibility

Management is responsible for compliance with the reguirements of laws,
reguiations, contracts, and grants applicable to its state program.

Auditor’s Responsibility

our responsibility is to express an opinion on gcompliance for the City

of Lenoir’s majer state program based on our audit of the types of compliance
reguirements referred to above. We conducted our audit of compliance in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
Amerieca; the standards applicable to financial auvdits contained in and
applicable sections oi OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local
Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations, as described in the Audit Manual
For Governmental Auditors in North Carolina, and the State Single Audit
Implementation Act. Those standards, OMB Circular A-133, and the State
Single Audit Implementation Act require that we plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether nencompliance with the types of
compliance reguirements referred to above that could have a direct and
material effect on a major state program occurred. An audit includes
examining, on a test basis, evidence about the City of Lenoir’s compliance

. with those reguirements and performing such other procedures, as we
considered necessary in the ciroumstances.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion
on compliance for its major state program. However, our audit does not
provide a legal determination on the City of Lenoir’s compliance.

Opinion on Its Major State Progranm

In our opinion, the City of Lenoir complied, in all material respects,
with the types of compliance reguirements referred to above that could have a
direct and materlal effect on its major state program for the yesar ended June
30, 2013, ’ :
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To the Honorablé Mayor and
Members of the City Council
City of Lenoir, North Carolina

Report on Internal Contrel Over Compliange

Management of the City of Lenoir is reeponsible for establishing and
maintaining effeotive internal control over conpliance with the types of
compliance requirements referxed to above. In planning and performing our
audit of compliange, we considered the City of Lenoir’s internal control over
compliance with the types of reyuirements that could have a direct and -
material affect on a major stabte program Lo determine the auditing procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purposs of erpressing our
opinion on compliance for each majoxr state program and to test and repoxt on
internal control over compliance in accoxdance with OME Cixoular A-133, but
not for the purpose of ewpressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal
control over compliance. Acoordingly, we do not express an opinion on the
offectiveness of the City’s internal control over compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design
ox operation of a control over conpliance dues not allow management ox
employdes, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, &o
prevent, or detect and corxract, noncompliance with a type of compliance
reguirement of a state program on # timely bagsis, A material weakness in
internal control over compliance 1s a deficiency, or combination of
dofisieneies, in internal contzol over compliance, such that there is a
reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance
requirement of a atate program will not be prevented, or detected and
corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal control
over compllance is a deficisncy, or combination of deficiencies, in internal
control over complisnce with a type of compliance requirement of g state
program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal econtrol over
compliance, yet important enmough to mexit attention by those chaxrged with
governanae.

our consideration of internal control over compliance was forx the
limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section and was not
designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over gompliance
that might be significant deflciencies or material weaknessas, We did not
identify any deficlencies in internal control over compliance that we
senaider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exiat
that have not been ldentified.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is
solaly to describe the scope of our testing of internal oontrol over
compliance and the results of that testing based on the reguirements of OMB
Cireular A-133. Accordingly, this nepert is not suitable for any other

purpose.
S. Eric Bowman, P.A,
Certified Public Acccuntant
Morganton, North Carolina
Yeptomber 30, 2013
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CITY OF LENOIR, NORTH CARQLINA

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,

2013

Section I. Summary of Auditor's Results

Financial Statements

Type of auditor’'s report issued: Ungqualified

Internal control over financial reporting:

* Material weakness(es) identified?
* Significant deficiencies identified
that are not considered to be

material weaknesses

Noncompliance material to financial
statements noted

Federal Awards

Internal control over major federal programs:

* Material weakness(es) identified?

* Gignificant deficiencies identified
that are not considered to be
material weaknesses

Type of auditor's report issued on compliance

for major federal programs: Ungualified

Any audit findings disclosed that are required
to be reported in accordance with Section\

5190 (a) of Circular A-133

Identification of major federal programs:

yes

X yes

yes

yes

yes

ves

CFDA Number Names of Federal Program or Cluster

none reported

% no

% none reported

}.8. Department of Housing and Urban Development

14,239 Home Investments Partnership
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CITY OF LENOIR, NORTH CAROLINA

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

Section I. Summary of Auditor's Results

Dellar threshold used to distinguish between

Type A and Type B Programs $300 090
Puditee qualified as low-risk auditee? X yes no
State Awards
Internal centrol over major State programs:

* Material weakness{es) identified? ves X no

* Significant deficiencies identified
that are not considered to be
material weaknesses vas

Type of auditor’s report issued on compliance
for major State programs: Ungualified

Any audit findings disclosed that are required
to be reported in accordance with the State

X none reported

Single Audit Implementation Act _yes _¥X mo
Identification of major State programs:
Program Name
Powell Bill Program
Section IT. Findings Related to the Audit of the Basic
Financial Statements of City of Lenoir:
Internal Controls Over Financial Reporting
2013-1
Condition: The City does not incorporate an
internal audit function ({(person}.
Criteria: Due to the complexity and diverse

type of financial transactions an
internal audit function is needed.
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Effect: Intexrnal controls are less effective
without an internal audit function.

Cause: pue to the size of the municipality
it has not been considered cost
effective.

Recommendation: Hire an additional employee familliar
with governmental accounting
transactions to provide this service.

Management

Response: It is not economically feasible to
hire additional staff at this time.

2013-2

Condition: The City overexpended several
departments in the General Fund and
Enterprise Fund totaling $1 488 and
$63 948 respectively.

Criteria: 211 Local Governments are to adopt a
balanced budget and make necessary
amendments to the original budget as
conditions dictate,

Effect: Funds were expended out of departments
vefore the appropriate budget
amendments were made.

Cause: Auditor reclassifications and unforeseen

accounts payable,

Recommendation: The City should not expend any funds unless
there is adeguate amounts in the particular
department budget.

Management
Response! The City agrees with this finding.
Section TII. Findings and Questioned Costs Related to Federal
Awards:

None Reported.

Section IV. Findings and Questioned Costs Related to State
Bwards:

None Reported.
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CITY OF LENOIR, WORTH CAROLINA

CORRECTIVE ACTICN PLAN

FOR THF YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

Finding: Z013-1
A, Name of Contact Person: Danny Gilbert, Finance Officer
B. Corrective Action: . It is not economically
feasible to hire additional
staff at this time.
C. Proposed Completion
Date: N/&
Finding: 2013-2
A, MName of Contact Person: Danny Gilbert, Finance Officer
B. Corrective Action: The City will continue to
amend the budget as
conditions warrant.
C. Proposed Completion
Date: The Board will implement the

above as soon as possible.
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CITY OF LENOIR

SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR YEAR AUDIT FINDINGS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

Finding 2012-1

There was one audit finding concerning hiring an internal auditor.
This is not deemed practical at this time.

Finding 2012-2

There was one audit finding relative to over expenditures, This
finding was not totally corrected even though budget amendments were
rmade.
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